

Version 4.1

USER GUIDE

September 2005

Prepared for:

U.S. Environmental Protection Agency Office of Air Quality Planning and Standards Research Triangle Park, NC 27711

Prepared by:

E.H. Pechan & Associates, Inc. 5528-B Hempstead Way Springfield, VA 22151

Pechan Report No. 05.09.007/9010.463

ACKNOWLEDGMENTS

Although under development for many years, AirControlNET Version 4.1 was completed for the Innovative Strategies and Economics Group (ISEG) under EPA contract number 68-D-00-283 by E.H. Pechan & Associates, Inc. Larry Sorrels was the EPA project manager. Special thanks to ISEG staff for providing review and comments as well as to Frank Divita, Brian Eisemann, and Tejas Shah of Pechan for their efforts in the development of this tool and this user manual.

CONTENTS

Page	
I uge	

CHAPTER I.	WELCOME TO AirControlNET <u>1</u>
А.	WHO IS THIS TOOL FOR?
B.	HOW THE MANUAL IS ORGANIZED
С.	SYSTEM REQUIREMENTS
D.	INSTALLING/UNINSTALLING AirControlNET4
	1. Installing AirControlNET
	2. Uninstalling AirControlNET <u>4</u>
E.	WHOM TO CONTACT WITH COMMENTS/QUESTIONS
F.	SOURCES FOR MORE INFORMATION $\dots 5$
CHAPTER II.	OVERVIEW OF AirControlNET
А.	GETTING STARTED
	1. Data Set Tool
	2. Sensitivity Control Set Tool
	3. Mobile Measures Tool
	4. Selecting Year for Reporting Costs
	5. Use of Help from the AirControlNET Toolbar Menu
B.	SUMMARY OF AirControlNET MODULES
CHAPTER II	I. CONTROL SCENARIOS MODULE
А.	OVERVIEW OF CONTROL SCENARIOS MODULE INTERFACE
	1. Filtering Criteria Fields
	2. User Commands
	3. Control Summary Fields
B.	CREATING A CONTROL SCENARIO
	1. Maximum Control Scenario
	2. Operating and Maintenance (O&M) Cost Values
	3. On-the-fly Sensitivity Calculation
C.	SAVING A CONTROL SCENARIO
D.	EXPORTING AND REPORTING
	1. Exporting Data from a Control Scenario
	2. Reporting Data from a Control Scenario
CHAPTER IV	V. LEAST-COST MODULE
A.	OVERVIEW OF LEAST-COST MODULE INTERFACE
	1. Filtering Criteria Fields
	2. User Commands
	3. Control Summary Fields
B.	DEVELOPING A LEAST-COST CONTROL SCENARIO
C.	EXPORTING AND REPORTING

	1. Exporting Data from a Least-Cost Control Scenario	<u>64</u>
	2. Reporting Data from a Least-Cost Control Scenario	
CHAPTER V.	SCRIPT BUILDER MODULE	<u>71</u>
А.	OVERVIEW OF SCRIPT BUILDER MODULE INTERFACE	<u>71</u>
	1. Filtering Criteria Fields	<u>73</u>
	2. User Commands	<u>74</u>
B.	DEVELOPING A REMSAD-ST SCRIPT	<u>75</u>
CHAPTER VI	. ANALYSIS TOOLS	<u>85</u>
А.	MAP ANALYSIS TOOL	<u>85</u>
	1. Overview of the AirControlNET Mapping Tool	<u>85</u>
	2. Creating a Map	
B.	GRAPH ANALYSIS TOOL	
	1. Overview of Graphing Tool	
	2. Example of Graph Analysis Tool	
APPENDIX A	: DATABASE GRID VARIABLES FOR CONTROL SCENARIOS	
MODULE		· · · · <u>A-1</u>
APPENDIX B	: DATABASE GRID VARIABLES FOR LEAST-COST MODULE	<u>B-1</u>
APPENDIX C	DATABASE GRID VARIABLES FOR SCRIPT BUILDER MODULE	· · · · · <u>C-1</u>
APPENDIX D	: REPORTING FILES FOR CONTROL SCENARIOS MODULE	···· <u>D-1</u>

TABLES AND FIGURES

Page

Table I-1	Summary Table of Control Measures by Sector and Pollutant1
Table II-1	MOBILE6 Vehicle Classifications
Table IV-1	1999 Nationwide Emissions by Pollutant and Sector
Figure II-1	AirControlNET Welcome Screen
Figure II-2	Selection of Data Set Tool under Data Menu
Figure II-3	Selection of the Emission Inventory Baseline
Figure II-4	Load Data Set Window
Figure II-5	Browse Data Set Window
Figure II-6	Delete Confirmation Window
Figure II-7	Permanent Delete Option Window
Figure II-8	Control Set Tool Interface
Figure II-9	New Sensitivity Control Set Interface
Figure II-10	Add and Remove measures from Modified Controls Grid Window <u>16</u>
Figure II-11	QA Messages Display Window <u>17</u>

Figure II-12	Load Control Set Window	<u>17</u>
Figure II-13	Calculate Data Set Window	<u>18</u>
Figure II-14	New Mobile Source Controls Grid Window	<u>21</u>
Figure II-15	New Mobile Measure Data Input Window	<u>22</u>
Figure II-16	New Mobile Measure Data Window - Modifying Pollutant Reduction	<u>23</u>
Figure II-17	New Mobile Measure Data Window - Modifying VMT Reduction	<u>24</u>
Figure II-18	Selection of Control Cost Year Window	<u>28</u>
Figure II-19	Selection of AirControlNET Help Toolbar Window	<u>28</u>
Figure III-1	Control Scenarios Module Interface	<u>32</u>
Figure III-2	Possible Combinations of Criteria Fields	<u>34</u>
Figure III-3	Control Scenario Filter Selection	<u>38</u>
Figure III-4	Control Scenario Database Grid After Running Query	<u>39</u>
Figure III-5	Database Grid and Summary Fields with Selected NO _x Controls	<u>40</u>
Figure III-6	Database Grid and Summary Fields with Selected NO_x and SO_2 Controls	<u>42</u>
Figure III-7	Database Grid After View Selected Command	<u>43</u>
Figure III-8	Maximum Control Scenario	<u>45</u>
Figure III-9	O&M Cost Component Values For Control Measures	<u>46</u>
Figure III-10	On-the-fly Sensitivity Calculation for Control Measures	<u>47</u>
Figure III-11	Control Scenario File Save As Dialog Box	<u>49</u>
Figure III-12	Measure File Save As Dialog Box	<u>50</u>
Figure III-13	REMSAD-ST Script Save As Dialog Box	<u>51</u>
Figure III-14	Control Cost File Save As Dialog Box	<u>53</u>
Figure IV-1	Least-Cost Module Interface	<u>56</u>
Figure IV-2	Possible Combinations of Filtering Criteria Fields: Least-Cost Module	<u>59</u>
Figure IV-3	Least-Cost Scenario Resulting From an Absolute Ton Reduction Target:	
	Show Criteria	<u>62</u>
Figure IV-4	Least-Cost Scenario Resulting From a Percentage Reduction Target: Show Criteria	<u>63</u>
Figure IV-5	Least-Cost Scenario Resulting From an Absolute Ton Reduction Target	<u>65</u>
Figure IV-6	Least-Cost Scenario Resulting From an Percentage Reduction Target	<u>66</u>
Figure IV-7	REMSAD-ST Script Save As Dialog Box	<u>68</u>
Figure IV-8	Control Cost File Save As Dialog Box	<u>69</u>
Figure V-1	Script Builder Module Interface	<u>72</u>
Figure V-2	Possible Combinations of Filtering Criteria Fields: Script Builder Module	<u>74</u>
Figure V-3	Selection of Filtering Criteria within Script Builder Module	<u>76</u>
Figure V-4	Entering Pollutant Control Factors	<u>77</u>
Figure V-5	Addition of Individual Scenario to Display Grid	<u>79</u>
Figure V-6	Specification of Additional Control Scenario: Applying Filtering Criteria and Entering	5
	Pollutant Control Factors	<u>80</u>
Figure V-7	REMSAD-ST Script Save as Dialog Box	<u>82</u>
Figure V-8	Example REMSAD-ST Script	<u>83</u>
Figure VI-1	Selection Of Mapping Tool under Analysis Tab	<u>86</u>
Figure VI-2	Map Creation Window.	<u>87</u>
Figure VI-3	Map Display Window	<u>88</u>

Figure VI-4	Selection Of Graphing Tool under Analysis Tab	<u>91</u>
Figure VI-5	Graph of Cost per Ton vs Incremental Tons Reduced	<u>92</u>
Figure VI-6	Graph of Cost vs Incremental Tons Reduced.	<u>93</u>

[This page intentionally left blank.]

CHAPTER I. WELCOME TO AirControlNET

AirControlNET is a control strategy and costing analysis tool developed by E.H. Pechan & Associates for the U.S. Environmental Protection Agency (EPA) to assist them in conducting regulatory impact analyses of air pollution regulations and policies. AirControlNET is a relational database system in which control technologies are linked to sources within EPA emissions inventories. It contains a database of control measures and cost information for reducing the emissions of criteria pollutants (e.g., NO_x , SO_2 , VOC, PM_{10} , $PM_{2.5}$, NH_3) as well as CO and Hg from point (utility and non-utility), area, nonroad, and mobile sources as provided in EPA's National Emission Inventory (NEI) format. As such, AirControlNET is linked to and dependent upon EPA emission inventories as a source of emissions data. The control measure data files in AirControlNET include the control efficiency to calculate emission reductions for that source and cost data (annual and capital) to calculate the total costs of applying the control measure.

Table I-1 provides the number of control measures within AirControlNET for each sector and pollutant.

Major Pollutant	Utility	Non-Utility	Area	Onroad	Nonroad	Total
NH ₃	0	0	3	0	0	3
NO _x	26	417	15	15	8	481
PM	24	165	12	13	0	214
SO ₂	6	37	0	0	0	43
VOC	0	7	65	5	12	89
Hg	5	0	0	0	0	5

Table I-1. Summary Table of Control Measures by Sector and Pollutant

As shown above, AirControlNET contains an extensive accounting for pollutant control measures available across sources.

The functions within AirControlNET include:

- Control Scenarios Module (CSM) that allows you to select specific control measures from the database by pollutant, source, and geographic area to create an emissions reduction scenario with computed emissions reductions and associated costs. You can then export this scenario into spreadsheet format for further analysis or into an input script for air quality modeling within REMSAD-ST (Pechan and ENVIRON, 2001 and 2002).
- 2) Least-Cost Module (LCM) that allows you to obtain an emissions reduction scenario by source and geographic area consisting of the set of control measures that achieves a stated pollutant-specific emission reduction target (in tons or percentage) with the least amount of total annual costs.

3) Script Builder Module (SBM) that allows you to develop "control factor files" based on percent reductions by pollutant, source, and geographic area to create an emissions reduction scenario for input into the REMSAD-ST air quality model.

AirControlNET also includes exporting and reporting features that allow you to export emissions and cost data resulting from your queries into text files, maps, charts, spreadsheets, or pre-formatted reporting tables.

This document describes the use of AirControlNET through its interface, which facilitates the viewing, analysis, and exporting of the information contained within the database. Documentation of the control measure files and the development of the AirControlNET database are provided in companion volumes (Pechan, 2005a and Pechan, 2005b).

A. WHO IS THIS TOOL FOR?

AirControlNET can be used by a wide range of people including policy analysts, engineers, economists, and others interested in evaluating the effectiveness and costs of air pollution control strategies. This tool allows you to search and review available control measures and to obtain information regarding pollutant emission reductions and associated costs for use in regulatory and policy evaluations or modeling efforts. It also allows you to export these data for use in further analysis and for input to the REMSAD-ST air quality modeling tool. It therefore reduces the time and effort typically associated with obtaining such information and makes available the information used by EPA/OAQPS for its regulatory analyses. Furthermore, it provides the opportunity for you to share your knowledge and expertise by reviewing the data contained within AirControlNET and providing new or updated information.

B. HOW THE MANUAL IS ORGANIZED

The manual includes the following chapters and appendices:

Chapter I: Welcome to AirControlNET – This chapter includes a brief summary of the AirControlNET application, necessary system requirements, installation instructions and sources of further information concerning control application and costing.

Chapter II: Overview of AirControlNET – This chapter provides basic instructions for running the AirControlNET application, including inventory and cost year selection, an overview of the modules and the help function associated with the application.

Chapter III: Control Scenarios Module – This chapter details the operation of the Control Scenarios Module including an overview of the interface, detailed descriptions of the filtering and query options, the creation of a control scenario and an explanation of the "Max Control" option. This chapter also

provides information on saving, exporting and reporting options including the export of measure files, REMSAD-ST Script Files, and cost files.

Chapter IV: Least-Cost Module – This chapter details the operation of the Least-Cost Module including an overview of the interface, detailed descriptions of the filtering and query options, and the creation of a least-cost control scenario. This chapter also provides information on saving, exporting and reporting options including the export of measure files, REMSAD-ST Script Files, and cost files.

Chapter V: Script Builder Module – This chapter details the operation of the REMSAD-ST Script Builder Module including an overview of the interface, detailed descriptions of the filtering and query options, and the creation of a "control factors file" or script file. This chapter also provides information on saving and exporting REMSAD-ST Script Files.

Chapter VI: Analysis Tools – This chapter details two analysis tools available within AirControlNET 4.1. It provides overview of the tools and step-by-step tutorial to produce maps and graphs using these tools.

Appendix A: Database Grid Variables for Control Scenarios Module

Appendix B: Database Grid Variables for Least-Cost Module

Appendix C: Database Grid Variables for Script Builder Module

Appendix D: Reporting Files for Control Scenarios Module

Specific control measure information, including costing methods and control effectiveness calculations is detailed in AirControlNET Volume III: Control Measure Documentation for AirControlNET (Pechan, 2005b). Information concerning the development and history of AirControlNET can be found in the AirControlNET Volume II: Development Report (Pechan, 2005a).

C. SYSTEM REQUIREMENTS

Based on our testing and evaluation, the minimum system requirements for installation and proper operation of AirControlNET include the following:

```
Operating System
```

Windows 98, 2000 or Windows XP

CPU

Speed = 233 MHz

RAM

RAM = 64 MB

Storage

Hard Drive Free Space = 650 MB

Display

Mode VGA Colors = 256 Resolution = 800 x 600

Other Hardware CD-ROM Drive

D. INSTALLING/UNINSTALLING AirControlNET

1. Installing AirControlNET

AirControlNET is distributed on CD-ROM, so to install AirControlNET, please follow the directions provided by the InstallShield Wizard that automatically appear upon inserting the CD into your CD-ROM drive. If the InstallShield Wizard does not automatically appear, then simply run the setup.exe file that can be found in the base directory of your CD-ROM drive. Once the installation tasks are completed, the InstallShield Wizard's "Completed Dialog Box" will appear. Click "Finish" so that you can then proceed with your application of AirControlNET. This process should take no more than 10 minutes depending upon your computer system.

2. Uninstalling AirControlNET

There are two methods for you to appropriately uninstall AirControlNET:

- 1) From the Windows Start Menu, click the "Uninstall AirControlNET" shortcut that was created during installation.
- 2) From the Control Panel Add or Remove Programs dialog box, select AirControlNET and click "Remove".

*Please note that after uninstalling AirControlNET some files may remain on your system. These include all shortcuts that were moved to a new location after the original installation as well as files that you created in your AirControlNET directory (C:\program files\AirControlNET\). It is not necessary to delete these files.

E. WHOM TO CONTACT WITH COMMENTS/QUESTIONS

For comments and questions, please contact Larry Sorrels at the Environmental Protection Agency's Office of Air Quality Planning and Standards.

Document No. 05.09.007/9010.463

Address:EPA/OAQPS C339-01, Research Triangle Park, NC 27711E-mail: sorrels.larry@epa.govTelephone:(919) 541-5041

F. SOURCES FOR MORE INFORMATION

For sources of more information on conducting control strategy and costing analysis, see the following:

EPA Air Pollution Control Cost Manual (Downloadable as a PDF from <u>http://www.epa.gov/ttn/catc/dir1/cost_toc.pdf</u>).

Background Information Documents can be downloaded from the Air Toxics Website (<u>http://www.epa.gov/ttn/atw</u>).

Clean Air Technology Center (CATC) provides fact sheets concerning various pollution control technologies that can be downloaded as compressed Word Perfect documents (WPD) and PDF files from their website at: <u>http://www.epa.gov/ttn/catc/products.html#aptecfacts</u>.

The Clearing House for Inventories and Emission Factors (CHIEF) website (<u>http://www.epa.gov/ttn/chief/</u>) provides access to emission inventories, emission factors and modeling tools. Supporting documentation for the emission inventories can also be found on this website.

Control measure datasets for additional years and scenarios developed from various EPA emissions inventories can be found at <u>www.emissionsonline.org/AirControlNET/</u>. These can be downloaded and used in AirControlNET.

[This page intentionally left blank]

CHAPTER II. OVERVIEW OF AirControlNET

AirControlNET is a control strategy and costing analysis tool that allows you to perform data queries from a large database of emission control measures. As developed, this tool facilitates such searches through its interface. Within each AirControlNET module, the selection process is quite simple and allows you to define the measures of interest by specifying a custom set of criteria. Once you have defined a control strategy then the resulting data can be exported into a text or spreadsheet file for further analysis or reporting. This section provides an overview of AirControlNET with an introduction to the Main Interface or "Welcome Screen" and describes how to get started. It also includes a summary of the AirControlNET modules. Information on using each of these modules is provided in the remaining chapters of this user manual.

A. GETTING STARTED

There are three ways for you to open AirControlNET and begin an application:

- 1) Simply double-click the desktop shortcut that was created during installation;
- 2) From the Windows Start Menu, click the AirControlNET shortcut that was created during installation; or



3) Run the "cn.exe" application file from the installation directory. (The default installation directory is C:\Program Files\E.H. Pechan\AirControlNET 4.1\).

Please note that it is deemed best to use AirControlNET without other active programs to reduce or minimize the likelihood of program delays and instability.

Upon opening AirControlNET, you will then be presented with the Main Interface or "Welcome Screen" as shown in Figure II-1. The main interface provides the starting point from which to begin a data query through one of the three available modules. However, before proceeding with one of the AirControlNET modules, you should specify the control measure data set from which the emission reductions will be generated as well as the year for reporting the associated costs of implementing the selected control measures.



Figure II-1. AirControlNET Welcome Screen

1. Data Set Tool

AirControlNET allows you the flexibility of selecting the baseline and user modified emissions data for emission reduction and cost evaluation of control strategies. The Data Set Tool allows the user to Add, Remove, Edit descriptions, and Select existing AirControlNET data sets. Once the desired data set has been loaded into AirControlNET, it will be used in the Control Scenario Module, Least Cost Module, and Reporting Module. Selecting "Data Set Tool" from the main "Data" menu (see Figure II-2) will launch the Data Set Tool interface shown in Figure II-3.

Selecting a default data set allows you to query that data set in any of the AirControlNET modules (Control Scenarios Module, Least Cost, Module, etc.). Clicking on any of the previously loaded inventories and clicking the "Select" button sets the default data set. Note that the default data set is denoted with an asterisk (*).

To add an inventory to the data set list, click the "Load" button. The interface that is displayed, as shown in see Figure II-4, allows you to browse for a data set and type in its description. The browse window is shown in Figure II-5. The data set name and path are automatically set when browsing for the inventory. To edit the description of a previously loaded data set, click the "Edit" button.

Data sets can be removed from AirControlNET by selecting an inventory and clicking the "Delete" button. You will receive the confirmation message as shown in Figure II-6 which asked you to confirm that you want to remove the data set. If you choose to remove the data set, you will then be asked if you wish to permanently delete the inventory from your computer. This window is shown in Figure II-7. Regardless of your choice, the data set will be removed from AirControlNET.

The Data Set Tool can merge any two data sets using the "Combine" button shown in Figure II-3. Once a data set is selected, the "Combine" button becomes available and when it is clicked, the user is prompted to enter the resulting data set's information. Next, the user is presented with a screen that displays the base data set (the one that is selected before the "Combine" button is clicked), the additional data set, and the resulting data set. Before proceeding with the merge, the user must select the additional data set to combine with the base. Duplicates keys are handled by giving the base data set priority. If a base data set key exists in the additional data set, the latter key, and its data, is ignored.

2. Sensitivity Control Set Tool

The Sensitivity Control Set Tool is used to create and maintain sensitivity control sets that contain the parameters that allow for modified AirControlNET control measures. The parameters that can be modified are control measure efficiency, interest rates, labor rates, energy costs, and equipment lifetimes. Sensitivity Control Sets are used in conjunction with base data sets to create modified data sets and the currently selected control set is used to execute "on the fly" sensitivity calculations in the Control Scenario Module. The Control Set Tool interface, shown in Figure II-8, prefixes the default control set with asterisk (*). Once a control set has



Figure II-2. Selection of Data Set Tool under Data Menu

Figure II-3. Selection of the Emission Inventory Baseline

\varTheta Data Set Tool				×
*2015 :: standard	i∷asd∷c∆dev\(w) (controlnet\acn - data\:	2015_20050218\	
Load	Edit	Select Current	Delete Current	Combine



🔗 ACN - Load Data	iset	
Dataset Name	1999_20041214	
Description	Clean Air Act	
Path	c:\dev\(w) controlnet\acn - data\1999_20041214\	
🗹 Make Current	Browse Load Cance	

Figure	II-5.	Browse	Data	Set	Window
		D : 0 11 00	Data		

ACN DB Select	? 🔀
Look in: 🗀 1999_20041214 💌 🗢 🔁	💣 📰 •
Image: tacn_Effectiveness_1999_20041214.DBFImage: tlacn_Image: tacn_Emissions_1999_20041214.DBFImage: tlacn_Image: tacn_Keys_1999_20041214.DBFImage: tlacn_Image: tacn_Keys_IgnorePollutant_1999_20041214.DBFImage: tlacn_Image: tacn_Keys_MaxtPollutant_1999_20041214.DBFImage: tlacn_Image: tacn_REMSADTotals_1999_20041214.DBFImage: tlacn_	Geographic_1999_; Meas_1999_20041; Plant_1999_20041; Point_1999_20041; SCCSector_1999_2 Segment_1999_20(
	>
File name:	Open
Files of type: Table/DBF	Cancel
	<u>H</u> elp
	Code Page







\varTheta Control Set Too	t				X
* test :: c:\dev\(w) c	ontro net\acn - data	s\tlacn_cs_sensitivi	ny_;est.dof		×
Load	New	Ecit	SelectDefault	Delate Currant	New Data Bet

been selected, the "Sensitivity" checkbox on the Control Scenarios Module interface becomes enabled (see Chapter 3: Control Scenarios Module).

When the "New" button is clicked, an interface is displayed that allows the user to modify existing AirControlNET measures (see Figure II-9). The first step in creating a new control set is to add existing controls to the modified controls grid. This is done by clicking measures in the existing controls grid (the upper grid) and clicking the "Add" button - clicking a measure in the lower grid and clicking the "Remove" button deletes it (see Figure II-10). Once controls have been added to the modified controls grid, you may change the measures' values (grayed out cells are read-only). You can check to see if your modified values are acceptable by clicking the QA button. If your value is outside the recommend range, the value will be colored yellow and marked as a warning. If your value is outside the valid range, the value will be colored red and marked as an error. All warnings and errors are explained in the "QA Message" column of the grid (Figure II-11). You may save a control set that has no errors by clicking the "Save" button. Once you are done, close the window and set a description for the control set. If you wish to edit the description of a control set or change its modified measures, select the control set and click the "Edit" button. To load an existing control set that is not currently displayed, click the "Load" button. Then, browse for the control set and set its description (see Figure II-12). To remove, a control set, click the "Delete" button. You will receive a confirmation message and be asked if you want to permanently delete the control set.

The Sensitivity Control Set Tool also allows you to create new data sets based on your modified controls. Select the desired control set and click the "New Data Set" button. You will be prompted with the new data set information - browse for the new data set's path and set name and description. The new data set interface (Figure II-13) displays the selected control set, the new data set information, and prompts you to select the base data set. Clicking "Calculate" will calculate the new data set and add it to the Data Set Tool. Calculating a new data set takes a significant amount of time.

Creating a new sensitivity control measures set using "Sensitivity Control Set Tool":

This section guides you through the creation of a new sensitivity control set. A sensitivity control set is created by modifying existing parameter values of selected control measures. Example used for the tutorial is to create sensitivity data set of all the ammonia controls; NGR & SCR controls on Utility Boiler – Coal/Wall; and NGR control on Utility Boiler – Coal/Tangential.

Step 1 Select "Sensitivity Control Set Tool" under Data tab from the main menu

On selection of "Sensitivity Control Set Tool", you will be presented with "Control Set Tool" interface. The "Control Set Tool" interface, shown in Figure II-8, prefixes the default control set with asterisk (*). You can load any previously created control set, edit any loaded control set, create new control set, unload/delete control set from AirControlNET, select default control set and create new sensitivity data set in conjunction with base data set through this interface. Upon selection of any default control set, "Sensitivity" checkbox on Control Scenarios Module interface becomes enabled. For our example, select "New" command to create new control set.

and a senting	0 5	4A			
Veapure Code	Moacute	Source	Po lutant	nterect Hate	Control Ef
10101	Chemical Addrives	Cattle Feedlote	PIH3	0.0000	SC.000
200201	Chemical Additives	Poutiny Operations	EH3	0.0000	75 000
VC0301	Chemical Additives	Hug Operations	NHS	0.0000	5C.000
JOC1C1	SNCR	Utilit≺ Eciler - Coal4/vall	NOX	7.0000	000.00
00102	NCR	Utility Ecilor - Cool4Vall	NOK	6.5500	SC.000
JOC1C3	SCR	Utility Eciler Coal4Vall	NOX	7.0000	EC.000
NDC2C1	SNCR	Utility Eciler Coal/Tangent sl	NOX	7.0000	35.000
00202	MGR I	Ubity Eciler - Coal Cangent el	MOX.	6.59UU	EC.000
4					
odified Cont	rols		D. L L		6
odified Cont easurs Coce	rols Maasure	Cource	Po lutan:	nterest Rate	Control Ef
odified Cont easure Coce	rols Measure	Cource	Po Litan:	nterest Rate	Control Ef
lodified Cont leasurs Coce	rols Maasure	Cource	Po Lutan:	nterest Rate	Control Ef

Figure II-9. New Sensitivity Control Set Interface

Figure II-10. Add and Remove measures from Modified Co	ontrols Grid Window
--	---------------------

veasare coce	Measure	=ource	Pollutant	Interest Rate	Control En
ALL1L1	Chemical Acotives	Lettle Feedlots	M-f3	J.UUUU	50,000
AFF 2F1	Chemical Accitives	Poutry Operations	N-L3	D 0000	75.000
ACC3C1	Chemical Accilives	Fug Operations	N-13	D.0000	50.000
V00101	SNCR	_tility Doler - Coel///al	NCX:	7.0000	05,000
V00102	NCR	Ltilly Boller - Cool/Ala	NCX:	3.5500	50.000
100103	SCR	Ltility Boller Cost//Val	NCX	7.0000	80.000
100201	SNCR	_tility Boller _Coal/Tangentia	NCX	7.0000	35.000
N00202	NGR	Ltifly Boller - Coal/Langencia	MCX.	5.5500	50,000
Hodified Cont	rola Measure	Cource	Polli tant	Interest Rate	Control Ef
Aodified Cont /easure Coce	rola Measure	Zource	Pollutant	Interest Rate	Control Ef
Nodified Cont Veasure Coce ACC1C1	rolls Measure Chemical Accitives	Cource Cettle Feedlota	Pollutant N-13	Interest Rete 0.000	Control Ef 50.000
Modified Cont Veasure Coce ACC1C1 ALLISL1	rolis Measure Chemical Accitives Chemical Accitives	Cource Cattle Feedlots -cg Uperations	NH3	Interest Rate 0.000 0.000	Control Ef 50.000 suuuu
Modified Cont Veasure Coce ACC1C1 AUC3C1 AUC3C1 AUC3C1	rolis Measure Chemical Accitives Chemical Accitives Chemical Accitives	Cource Cettle Feedlots Co-Uperations Coutry Operations	Pollutant N-B M-B N-B	Interest Rate 0.000 0.000 0.000	Control E ⁴ 50.000 50.000 75.000
Modified Cont Veasure Coce ACC1C1 ACC3C1 ACC3C1 ACC3C1 MOTIO2	rols Measure Chemical Accitives Chemical Accitives Chemical Accitives NiciR	Cource Cattle Feedlots -cc_Uperations -buttry Operations titly Entire - Cnal//fail	Pollutant NH3 NH3 NH3 NH3 NH3	Interest Reta 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000	Control E1 50,000 50,000 75,000 50,000
Modified Cont Veasure Coce ACC1C1 ACC3C1 ACC3C1 ACC3C1 ACC3C1 ACC3C1 ACC3C2 ACC3C3 ACC3C3	rols Measure Chemical Accitives Chemical Accitives Chemical Accitives NiciR SCR	Cource Cattle Feedlots -cg_Uperations -outry Operations -titly Enter - Coal//fail _titly Butler - Coal//fail	Pollutant NH3 NH3 NH3 NH3 NL5 NL5 NC5	Interest Rate 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.550 7.000	Control E ⁴ 50,000 50,000 75,000 50,000 80,000
Aodified Cont Veasure Coce ACC101 ACC301 ACC301 ACC301 ACC301 ACC302 ACC	rols Measure Chemical Accitives Chemical Accitives Chemical Accitives NGR SCR NGR	Dource Cettle Feedlots -cg_Operations -dutry Operations -titly Enter - Cret//Val _titly Buter - Coel//Val _titly Doter - Coel/Tangentia	Pollutant NH3 NH3 NH3 NH3 NC3 NC3 NC3 NC3 NC3	Interest Rate 0.000 0.000 0.000 5.550 7.000 0.550	Control E ⁴ 50.000 50.000 75.000 50.000 50.000
Aodified Cont Veasure Code VCC1C1 VCC1C1 VCC2C1 VCC2C1 VCC2C1 VCC2C2 VCC2C2	rols Measure Chemical Accitives Chemical Accitives Chemical Accitives NGR SCR NGR	Cource Cettle Feedlots -cg_Operations -dutty Operations -dutty Operations tilly Enter - Cost//al _tilly Buter - Cost//al _tilly Dater - Cost/Tangentia	Pollutant NH3 NH3 NH3 NA3 NA3 NA3 NA3 NCX NCX	Interest Rate 0.000 0.000 0.000 5.550 7.000 0.650	Control E ⁴ 50.000 50.000 750.000 50.000 50.000
Modified Cont Veasure Coce ACC1C1 AUC3C1 AUC3C1 AUC3C1 AUC3C1 NO0103 NO0202	rols Measure Chemical Accitives Chemical Accitives Chemical Accitives NGR SCR NGR	Cource Cattle Feedlots -cg_Operations -dutry Operations -titly Enter - Coal//al Litily Buter - Coal/Tangentia	Pollutant NH3 NH3 NH3 NH3 NCX NCX NCX	Interest Rate 0.000 0.000 0.000 5.550 7.000 0.550	Control E ⁴ 50.000 50.000 750.000 50.000 50.000

Aessure Code	Measure				s	ource	Pol utant inte	erest Rate	Control Ef
V00101	Chenical Additives			Chemical Additives Cattle Feedlots			NH3	00000	50.000
A00201	Chemical Ac	ditives			F	cultry Operations	NC	0000.0	75,000
400301	Chortical Ac	scvitibk			H	log Operations	VH-S	0000.0	50.000
1001 01	SVCR				0	Itlity Boiler Cosl.Wal	VOX	7.0000	35.000
4001.02	MGR				U	tiny Boller - CostWal	MUX.	5.5500	50.JJJ
JAA1 A.3	STR				0	thity Boller - Coaltwal	VDX .	7 0000	80 111
400201	SVCR				U	Itlity Builer - Coal/Targer tial	NOX	7.0000	35.000
400202	NGR				U	tliny Doiler - Coal/Tendential	NOX	0.5500	50.000
ladified Cont Sur Pul Efficier	rois Electric (N-	almat G	Oji-ra l	Mainter ^a	Ficili	QA Vessage			
Nodified Cont Control Efficient 20.000	rols Flei hic FN- 0.000	almal G D.000	Opera I 0.000	utainten ^a	Ficuij D	DA Vessage			
fodified Cont Control Efficien S0.000 S0.000	rols Electric fN- 0.000 0.000	almal G 0.000 0.000	011-tra 1 0.000 0.000	Vtainter 3 0.000 0.000	=i:iii 2 2	QA Vessage			
fodified Cont Control Efficient 20.000 50.000 75.000	rols Flethic FN- 0.000 0.000 0.000	ahmai G 0.000 0.000 0.000	011-tra 1 0.000 0.000	Mainten ³ 0.000 0.000	= <u>r:uij</u>)))	QA VESSAGE			
Addified Cont Carled Filicien 30.000 \$0.000 75.000 1.000	rols Flet Pit: FN- 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000	ahmail G 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000	0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000	Mainten 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000	<mark>=Icnij</mark> D D 15	QA VESSINGE Warring: Cost Enficiency should b	e greater than 5J.UL	IV and less than 5	
Addified Cont Cortinel Efficient 30.000 50.000 75.000 1.000 4.000	Tols Fl⊨i Pir: FN- 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000	<mark>⊧lmat G</mark> 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000	0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000	Mainten S 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000	- <mark>-cni</mark>)) 15 21	QA VESSINGE Verming: Cost Enficiency should b From: Cost Efficiency in should b	e greater than 5J.00 When that 0.000 and	IV and less than 5 less than 100 00	C.UUU V/arning: C:
Indified Cont Societ Societ Societ Societ 75.000 1.000 3.000 5.000 5.000 5.000 5.000 5.000 5.000 5.000 5.000 5.000 5.000	rols Flei Fii: FN- 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000	almal G 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000	OJIHIA 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000	Mainter ² 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000	- <mark>Frail</mark>)) 15 21	QA VESSINGE Verming: Cost Enficiency should b Futor: Cost Efficiency in ust be gre	e greater than 5J.UL When that 0.000 and	IV and less than 5 less than 100 00	C.UUU Warning: C.
Addified Cont Cort Pol Efficient 30.000 50.000 75.000 1.000 2.000 50.000	rols Flei Fii: FN- 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000	almat G 3.000 3.000 3.000 3.000 3.000 3.000	Oji 4ra 1 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000	Mainter S 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000	=i:iii)) 15 21 15	QA Messinge Warning: Cost Enforcency should b From Cost Efficiency in usi be gre	e greater than 5J.UL When that 0.000 and	IV and less than 5 less than 100 00	C.UUU Warning: C
Addified Cont Cort Pol Efficient 30.000 50.000 75.000 1.000 50.000	rols Flei Fii: FN 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000	Junal G 3.000 3.000 3.000 3.000 3.000 3.000	0,000 0,000 0,000 0,000 0,000 0,000 0,000	0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000	=i:mi 3 3 15 21 15	QA VESSAGE Verming: Cost Efficiency should b Frind: Cost Efficiency in ust be gre	e greater than 5J.UL sater than 0.000 and	IV and less than 5 less than 100 MM	:C.UUU VVarning: C.



Figure II-12. Load Control Set Window





Step 2 Create new sensitivity control set

Upon selection of "New" command, you will be presented with "New Sensitivity Control Set" interface having two control grids, "Existing Controls" and "Modified Controls", as shown in Figure II-9. Upper "Existing Controls" grid is populated with existing control measures within AirControlNET. You select control measure to be modified from the "Existing Controls" grid and click "Add" to add it to the "Modified Control" grid. Repeat this, to add all the desired controls to "Modify Controls" grid. Controls added to "Modified Controls" grid are grayed out in "Existing Control" grid. You change the parameter values for the controls in "Modify Controls" grid by typing in new values. You can remove the control from "Modified Control" grid by selecting it and clicking "Remove" button on the interface. For our example, select controls as shown in Figure II-10. Modify parameter values of selected controls as desired.

Step 3 Select QA command to verify the data for quality assurance

To verify the entered information, select "QA" command on the interface. Any erroneous data will be marked with red color and any warning will be marked with yellow color. QA messages would be displayed in the extreme right column of "Modified Controls" grid as shown in Figure II-11. All the errors have to be rectified before you can save the control set.

Step 4 Select Save command to save the control set

Select the Save command to save modified control measures. Upon selection, you will be asked for table name and location to save the new control set. Enter the control set name and browse the location to save control set as desired. Select "Close" command to close "New Sensitivity Control Set" interface. Upon closing the interface, you will be prompted to enter description for the new control set. Newly created control set would be loaded into AirControlNET.

Step 5 Create new data set for newly created control set

Select newly created control set in Control Set tool. Click "New Data Set" command to create new data set from the selected control set in conjunction with base data set. You will be prompted with the new data set information- browse for the new data set's path and set name and description. The new data set interface as shown in Figure II-13 displays the selected control set, the new data set information, and prompts you to select the base data set. Clicking "Calculate" will calculate the new data set and add it to data set tool.

3. Mobile Measures Tool

The Mobile Module Tool is used to create new mobile source control measures that can subsequently be used in AirControlNET analyses. New mobile measures are developed from user provided changes to motor vehicle activity (i.e., VMT) and emissions by vehicle class and year as illustrated in the

example below. Newly created data sets can subsequently be used in the Control Scenarios, Least Cost, and Reporting Modules. They can also be combined with other existing data sets.

When activated, the mobile measure tool displays all previously saved mobile measure information (measure code, measure description, source, pollutant, base year, and cost year) in the grid shown in Figure II-14. The tool allows you to add new mobile source control measures to AirControlNET by editing the values in the top panel and then clicking the "Add" button. You may delete any unsaved measures by selecting a measure and clicking the "Remove" button. To save the mobile measures that are displayed in the grid, click the "Save" Button.

By selecting a measure and clicking the "Edit Data" button, a mobile data window is displayed as shown in Figure II-15. This interface displays the read-only selected measure information and controls to view, add, and remove measure data. To the left of the grid, there are three vehicle information controls: a vehicle class radio button group, a vehicle type listbox, and a vehicle model year/age listbox. The vehicle class radio button refreshes the vehicle type listbox - all vehicle types for the selected vehicle class are displayed in this listbox. The grid can only contain vehicle types from one class so if the vehicle class is changed, the grid is reset. The vehicle model year/age list box contains entries related to the selected measures base year. Along with the "All" entry, there are 25 model years/ages from ranging from 0 years old (the base year) to 24 years old. You may select multiple model years excluding the "All" entry. Once at least one vehicle type and model year/age have been selected, you may add the data to the grid by clicking the "Add" button. All grid entries must have the same vehicle model year/age. So, once an entry has been added to the grid, all subsequent vehicle types must use the same vehicle model year/age sets. Mobile measure data can be either reduce VMT or pollutant emissions which is indicated by the "VMT Reduction" checkbox as percentage reductions (see Figures II-16 and Figures II-17). Table II-1 provides descriptions of the vehicle type abbreviations.

When you have entered all the desired mobile data you can save the grid values by clicking the "Save" button. An AirControlNET data set is created by clicking the "New Data Set" button that will prompt you for the new data set information. Calculating a new data set takes a significant amount of time.

Creating a New Mobile Source Control using the "Mobile Measures Tool":

This section provides step-by-step instruction on how to create new mobile control measures using the tool. An example is provided to assist you with this application in tutorial fashion. Example considered for the tutorial is to create "Generic Mobile Control" control measure applicable to "All" model years; Vehicle Class -"Vehicle 8"; Vehicle Type - "LDGV"; using 2001 as base year and 1999 as cost year. Control measure data - NOx and CO emissions reduction by 25% and cost of control is \$500 / vehicle.

Step 1: Select Mobile Measures Tool under Data tab from the main menu

On selection of Mobile Measures Tool, you will be presented with a Control measures grid with previously saved measure information, if any. Enter the new measure control information in the top panel of the display and click "Add" button on the interface to add new mobile source

/lea mok	sure Code :162	Measure Name mok1b2	Source Name mob1k2	Major Pollut	tant Base Yei 2015	ar Cost Year 2004 -
bild	Measures					
ive.	Measure Corle	Measure Nante	Source Name	Pollutant	Fase Year	CostYear
	MOB1B:	MOB1E1	MOF1BI	v (VOC)	2010	2012
	MOB1B2	MOB1E2	MO=182	s (NH3)	J.15	2.0.4
			- - -		1	
		-				
		_				
						1

Measure Code M MOB'=1	easure Na 10191 :: '	me	Source Name NOB181	N	lajor l'olluti / (VCC)	ant Ba	ise Yea UIL	ir	Cost 200	Year 2	
VMT Reduction	Mobile I	Measure Date									
ehicle Class 9 28 Vehicle Types 9 12 Vehicle Types 9 8 Vehicle Types	Yehicle Type	Model∨sar (Age)	Vehicle Cost (I/vehicle)	Calon Cost (IVgallor)	VMT Cost (\$4m0)	VMT (%)	900 (%)	N Ox (%)	00 (%)	PM10 (%)	() ()
hicle Type		35.	Q		5	2	0	a		9	
CDDC 🔄		23	8	-	2	-	-	-	8	-8	1
COBT								1	2	- 5	
		-				-	1	-	<u> </u>	-	+
CDV4		10.	-		~	+	-	-	-		-
CDV5			-		10	-	-	-	-	-	
CDV6		1								-	
						1				1	
del Year (Age)							1	2	ŝ	2	
	<u> </u>	1				-		_		-	÷.
HF (Tyeaus clr.) 🦷					2		-	-	-	-	
009 (1 years cld) 🔜	4		- (2	3	8	3	5	- R	
IUE (2 vecto cle)		- Ü	<u>.</u>		j.	1	1	1	-	1	
07 (O years clc)		1					1	1	1		t,
008 (4 years ald)	4										F

Figure II-15. New Mobile Measure Data Input Window

Figure II-16. New Mobile Measure Data Window - Modifying Pollutant Reduction

🕈 ACN - New Mobile	Control Set										×
Measure Code MOE101	Measure Nan MCD1D1	ne Si M	ource Name 1021 D1	M 7	ajor Pollutar <mark>(VOC)</mark>	il Bas	ie Year 10		Cost Y 2002	'ear	
VMT Reduction	Mobile M	essure Data									
Vehicle Class	Vehicle 	Model Year (Age)	vehicle Cost (\$Menicle)	Gallon Cost (¥/gallor)	VMT Cost (SAmt)	VМТ (%)	VOC (%)	NO)((%)	CO (%)	PW10 (%)	PI ▲ ()
20 Vehicle Types 20 Vehicle Types 20 Vehicle Types	HDGY HDGY	2009 (1 years (C.3000	0 0000	0.0000	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00	0
We binds Time	HDGV	2007 (3 years o		0 0000	0.000	0.00	J.UU	0.00	ULU		.0
BUS		2000 (* lycare (2000 (2 veals (0000.0	0 0000	0000.0	C.33	0.00 0.00	0 00	0.00	0.00	10 10
HCDV2E	HHDCY	20 17 (3 years)	r 700	0 0000		())	100	0.00	0.00	0.00	'n
H-007	LDDT	2009 (* iyears (2008 (2 years (C.3000	0 0000	C.000C	C.33	00.C J.UU	0 00	0.00	C.30	10 .U
LDDT	LODT	2007 (3 years (C.30C0	0 0000	C.000C	C.00	D.00	0.00	0.00	0.30	10
LDGT1 LDGT2	-	с		()			·			_	
Model Year (Age)						2					
All 2016 (Olivears of th						0					
2009 (1 years old)	_	C		¢			6				
2006 (2 years old) 2007 (3 years old)											
2006 (4 years old) 2005 (5 years old)	•										F
2004 (6 years old)	- Adc	Ren	nove	QA	Ca	NE	Nev	/ Data I	et	C 036	

🔗 ACN - New Mobile	Control Set										×
Measure Code MCB1B1	Measure Na WOB1B'	me S	ource Name 105: 91	M	ajor l'ollutai (VOC)	nt Bas 20	e Yean 10		Cost Y 2002	'ear	
VMT Reduction	Mobile I	Measure Data									
Vehicle Class	Vchicle −Ty≿e	Modol Year (Age)	Vehicle Cost (\$Mehicle)	Gallor Coct (\$/gallon)	VMT Cost (#Vmt)	VMI (%)	V0C (%)	NO:((%)	CU (%)	PW1U H (35) (″ ∸ ≫
28 Vehicle Types	I DOV	2009 (1 years)	0.0000	0.000C	0.000	0 00	0 C 0	0.00	C.X	C.030	วี
🖗 8 Vehicle Types	HDGV	2008 (2 years)	0.000	D 000	0 000	0.00	0.00	0.00	٢٢	ורחח	ī
Wahiela Tuna	HDGV	2007 (3 years)	υττου	J.UUJL	0.000	0.00	0.0	ULL	L.L	C.004	1
puo	HHDDV	2000 (1 years)	0.000	0.0000	0.000	0 0 0	0.00	0.00	0.00	C.03	2
	111DDV	2000 (2 years)	0.000	0.0000	0.000	0.00	0 C 0	0.00	C.X	C.03)
HD 1928	HIDDA	2007 (3 years)	0.000	- 1 00 7 0	0 0000	0.00	0.00	nrr	C Y	ורחיז	1
	LOD	2009 (1 years)	01100	0.0000	0.000	0.00	0.0	ULL	U.JU	0.00	<u>,</u>
LODT	LOD-	2003 (2 years)	0.000	0.000C	0.0000	0.00	0.00	0.00	C.X	C.020)
	LODT	2007 (3 years)	0.000	0.000C	0.000	0.00	0.00	0.00	C.X	C.00[0)
1.1611	1. S.			·		2	s	5 p			4
LOCT2											-
100012										1	-
Nodel Year (Age)						_					-
AL						3	4 6				
2010 (0 years old)	ĩi	- 1			-		÷	÷	-		-2
2009 (1 years old)		- A		· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·		-					-1
2008 (2 years old)						2	5 2	a 6			-2
2007 (3 years old)				<		9	S				-
2006 (/ years o d)			1		1		1				Ċ.
2005 (5 years old)											
? DC4 (ñ y∈a s o d)	- Add	Hor	n073	GΛ	=0	IVC	Now	(Liata S	ct	C ooc	

Figure II-17. New Mobile Measure Data Window - Modifying VMT Reduction

Table II-1.	MOBILE6	Vehicle (Classifications
-------------	----------------	-----------	-----------------

Number	Abbreviation	Description
1	LDGV	Light-Duty Gasoline Vehicles (Passenger Cars)
2	LDGT1	Light-Duty Gasoline Trucks 1 (0-6,000 lbs. GVWR, 0-3,750 lbs. LVW)
3	LDGT2	Light-Duty Gasoline Trucks 2 (0-6,000 lbs. GVWR, 3,751-5,750 lbs. LVW)
4	LDGT3	Light-Duty Gasoline Trucks 3 (6,001-8,500 lbs. GVWR, 0-5,750 lbs. ALVW)
5	LDGT4	Light-Duty Gasoline Trucks 4 (6,001-8,500 lbs. GVWR, greater than 5,751 lbs. ALVW)
6	HDGV2b	Class 2b Heavy-Duty Gasoline Vehicles (8,501-10,000 lbs. GVWR)
7	HDGV3	Class 3 Heavy-Duty Gasoline Vehicles (10,001-14,000 lbs. GVWR)
8	HDGV4	Class 4 Heavy-Duty Gasoline Vehicles (14,001-16,000 lbs. GVWR)
9	HDGV5	Class 5 Heavy-Duty Gasoline Vehicles (16,001-19,500 lbs. GVWR)
10	HDGV6	Class 6 Heavy-Duty Gasoline Vehicles (19,501-26,000 lbs. GVWR)
11	HDGV7	Class 7 Heavy-Duty Gasoline Vehicles (26,001-33,000 lbs. GVWR)
12	HDGV8a	Class 8a Heavy-Duty Gasoline Vehicles (33,001-60,000 lbs. GVWR)
13	HDGV8b	Class 8b Heavy-Duty Gasoline Vehicles (>60,000 lbs. GVWR)
14	LDDV	Light-Duty Diesel Vehicles (Passenger Cars)
15	LDDT12	Light-Duty Diesel Trucks 1 and 2 (0-6,000 lbs. GVWR)
16	HDDV2b	Class 2b Heavy-Duty Diesel Vehicles (8,501-10,000 lbs. GVWR)
17	HDDV3	Class 3 Heavy-Duty Diesel Vehicles (10,001-14,000 lbs. GVWR)
18	HDDV4	Class 4 Heavy-Duty Diesel Vehicles (14,001-16,000 lbs. GVWR)
19	HDDV5	Class 5 Heavy-Duty Diesel Vehicles (16,001-19,500 lbs. GVWR)
20	HDDV6	Class 6 Heavy-Duty Diesel Vehicles (19,501-26,000 lbs. GVWR)
21	HDDV7	Class 7 Heavy-Duty Diesel Vehicles (26,001-33,000 lbs. GVWR)
22	HDDV8a	Class 8a Heavy-Duty Diesel Vehicles (33,001-60,000 lbs. GVWR)
23	HDDV8b	Class 8b Heavy-Duty Diesel Vehicles (>60,000 lbs. GVWR)
24	MC	Motorcycles (Gasoline)
25	HDGB	Gasoline Buses (School, Transit and Urban)
26	HDDBT	Diesel Transit and Urban Buses
27	HDDBS	Diesel School Buses
28	LDDT34	Light-Duty Diesel Trucks 3 and 4 (6,001-8,500 lbs. GVWR)

control measures into AirControlNET. You may delete any unsaved measures by selecting a measure and clicking the "Remove" button. To save the mobile measures displayed in the grid, click the "Save" Button. For our example, you add following information for the measure:

measure code: mOT9 measure description: Generic Mobile Control source: LDGV Major pollutant: NOx base year: 2001 cost year: 1999

Step 2: Click Edit button to enter the data for the control measure

Select the newly added control measure in the Control Measure grid and click "Edit" Button to enter data for the control measure. The mobile data interface displays the read-only selected control measure information and controls to view, add, and remove measure data. In the left panel of the interface, there are three vehicle information controls: a vehicle class radio button group, a vehicle type listbox, and a vehicle model year/age listbox. The vehicle class radio button refreshes the vehicle type listbox - all vehicle types for the selected vehicle class are displayed in this listbox. The grid can only contain vehicle types from one class so if the vehicle class is changed, the grid is reset. The vehicle model year/age list box contains entries related to the selected measures base year. Along with the "All" entry, there are 25 model year/ages from ranging from 0 years old (the base year) to 24 years old. You may select multiple model year/age. So, once an entry has been added to the grid, all subsequent vehicle types must use the same vehicle model year/age sets. Mobile measure data can be either reduce VMT or pollutant emissions which is indicated by the "VMT Reduction" checkbox.

For our example enter the following measure data:.

Vehicle Class: "8 vehicle type" Vehicle Type: "LDGV" Model year (Age): All Click "Add" button to add this data to the grid Enter 25% reduction for NOx and CO in the data grid and cost \$500/vehicle.

Step 3: Select QA command to verify data for quality assurance

To verify the entered information, select QA command on the interface. Any erroneous data will be marked with red color. Suggestions for the erroneous data will be displayed in "QA Message" column.

Select 4: Select New Data Set command to create new data set with newly created Control Measure

Select the "New Data Set" command to create a new data set to use with Control Scenario Module (CSM), Least Cost Module (LCM) and reporting module. On selecting command, you will be prompted to enter the data set name, description and path to save the data set.

4. Selecting Year for Reporting Costs

AirControlNET allows you the flexibility of selecting the year for reporting control costs. You have the option to select any year from 1990 through 2004. In order to select the desired reporting year, you must choose an option as located under Data from the AirControlNET toolbar menu as shown in Figure II-18. You may also change the reporting year within each AirControlNET module by selecting a different year from the toolbar menu within a module. Please note that 1999 is set as the default.

5. Use of Help from the AirControlNET Toolbar Menu

AirControlNET provides the Help option that allows you to consult this User Guide as a reference while working with this tool. You can access the help screen, as shown in Figure II-19, by selecting "AirControlNET Help" located under Help from the AirControlNET toolbar menu or by pressing the F1 function key.

B. SUMMARY OF AirControlNET MODULES

As shown in Figure II-1, the AirControlNET Main Interface provides you with the option to perform one the following functions by selecting the appropriate button:

- (1) Control Scenarios Module (CSM) that allows you to search the database and select individual control measures by pollutant, source, and geographic area to create a control strategy scenario with computed emissions reductions and associated costs. Please refer to Chapter III for details on using this module.
- (2) Least-Cost Module (LCM) that allows to obtain an emissions reduction scenario by source and geographic area consisting of the set of control measures that achieves a stated pollutant-specific emission reduction target (in tons or percentage) with the least amount of total annual costs. Please refer to Chapter IV for details on using this module.
- (3) Script Builder Module (SBM) that allows you to develop "control factor files" based on percent reductions by pollutant, source, and geographic area to create an emissions reduction scenario for input into the REMSAD-ST air quality model. Please refer to Chapter V for details on using this module.



Figure II-18. Selection of Control Cost Year Window

Figure II-19. Selection of AirControlNET Help Toolbar Window


You may also choose one of these AirControlNET modules under Tools from the AirControlNET toolbar menu. Please note that the Tools option found on the toolbar menu is available within each module so that you can return to the AirControlNET Main Interface or move directly to another module as desired.

Once your data query is complete, you may then export the data from the control scenario into text or spreadsheet format for further analysis or into an input script for air quality modeling within REMSAD-ST (Pechan and ENVIRON, 2001 and 2002).

[This page intentionally left blank.]

CHAPTER III. CONTROL SCENARIOS MODULE

The Control Scenarios Module provides the capability to query the database in a detailed fashion and create a control scenario as part of a control strategies and costing analysis. The interface for this module, as presented in Figure III-1, provides you with a query-based tool to evaluate the emission reductions and costs associated with implementing the chosen control measure(s). This module facilitates such queries through pre-set filters that allow you to define criteria for selection of control measures and create a data set that may consist of a wide range of pollution control measures at various costs, applicability, and control efficiencies. This chapter begins by introducing you to the interface for the Control Scenario Module and provides details on the available data query options. Examples are provided to better illustrate these capabilities. The chapter concludes by presenting the options for exporting data and reporting the query results.

A. OVERVIEW OF CONTROL SCENARIOS MODULE INTERFACE

Upon selecting this module from the AirControlNET Main Interface, you are presented with the Control Scenarios Module Interface as shown in Figure III-1. There are four important components of this interface that you must be familiar with in order to create a control scenario. As described below, these components include Filtering Criteria, User Commands, Database Grid, and Control Summary.

Filtering Criteria: The Filtering Criteria section allows you to create the set of control measures to be included as part of your control strategy and costing analysis. Based on your selections of filtering criteria, the control measures are displayed in the database grid. The wide range of drop down combo boxes gives you the ability to filter the database according to your specific requirements. Once you have selected the desired combination of filtering criteria, you can apply the User Commands as described below to reduce the number of control measures shown within the Database Grid.

User Commands: The User Commands section of the interface provides you with different query options to facilitate creating control scenarios. After you have chosen the conditions for which the scenario is being created, the Run Query command executes the selected filters and displays individual control measures matching those criteria in the Database Grid (described below). The next four commands–Select All, Unselect All, View All, and View Selected–are designed to give you further capabilities to narrow or expand the control measures of interest. The remaining command button–Reset Criteria–allows you to reset the filtering criteria and begin a new filtering and/or selection process.

Database Grid: The Database Grid displays the individual control measures that are contained with the AirControlNET database (Please refer to the AirControlNET Development report for details on the development of this database). Each row entry displayed in this grid represents an individual control measure as applied to a particular source. You may experience some delays

0 1	irControINET	r4.0	- Control Sce	narios	2010_200	41214, Ca	st Year: 2	000				
Ele	Edit Tools One	a ysic	<u>E</u> ata <u>H</u> elp				_		_			
P	OLLUTANT		REGION		MSA		STATE	(COUNTY			
, -		•	AL	-	A	<u> </u>	4.II		A1			UNES
4	AILS	Ŧ	AI	-	A		A.II	в	AI	K TUN	SENSI	TIMITY
	147 A.	1					-	-	-			
	Run Query		Select A	II.	Unsele	act //II	View	/ All	View S	selected	Reset C	riteria
F	Control	_	Source		PM10	PM2.5	-0	oc	NOn	802	200	NH:
	-						-			ţ.		
F							-					
-	2 				8	8 19	2	-		2	5	
										i.		
E												
									-			
								1				
×.	<u> </u>						×.					
Te	tal Annual Cost								Auto	Summar <u>ize</u>	Sum	marizo
		-	HOX	VOC	\$02	PM10	PM2.6	NH3	- 00	: BC	50	Нд
To An	ns Raduced nual Tons				88	2	-					
Pe	rcent Reduction											

Figure III-1. Control Scenarios Module Interface

updating this grid due to the large database being accessed. Based on the filtering criteria that you select for a data query, this grid area will display those control measures that match the selected criteria. You can then individually select those control measures of interest within the Database Grid by checking the "Add" checkbox field located to the far left of the grid area or use the appropriate User Command to more broadly select a set of control measures. The individual fields contained within this grid are listed and defined in Appendix A. You can sort the data displayed in the database grid by clicking shift or control and the column header (shift + column header sorts a62, control + column header sorts 26a.

Control Summary: The Control Summary section provides you with useful summary or aggregate calculations based on the selected control measures within the Database Grid. These summary results should help you to target a goal when selecting multiple control measures. This summary information is updated automatically when the Auto Summarize option is selected or can be manually updated using the Summarize button.

1. Filtering Criteria Fields

These fields are shown in Figure III-1 across the top of the Control Scenarios Module interface and provide drop-down menus with the various criteria for you to select. Applying these filters queries the database and results in the Database Grid displaying only those emission control measures that match the selected criteria.

Pollutant–This field lists the available pollutants including PM_{10} , $PM_{2.5}$, EC, OC, NO_x , SO₂, VOC, NH_3 , CO, and Hg.

Region–This field lists a range of broad regions that are typical of regulatory and policy analysis including:

- **!** Eastern and Western continental United States. Eastern States are the 37 OTAG States, defined as all states east of or touching the 100° line of longitude.
- ! The Ozone Transport Commission (OTC) http://www.otcair.org/
- ! Southern Appalachian Mountain Initiative (SAMI)
- ! Regional Planning Organizations (RPOs) such as WRAP, WESTAR, LADCO, NESCAUM, MARAMA, CENSARA, and SESARM (<u>http://www.epa.gov/air/visibility/regional.html</u>)
- North American Electric Reliability Council (NERC) Regions, including ECAR, ERCOT, MAAC, MAIN, MAPP, NPCC, FRCC, SERC, SPP, and WSCC (<u>http://www.nerc.com/</u>)

MSA–This field lists the Metropolitan Statistical Areas (MSAs). The MSA field includes micropolitan and consolidated areas. Further information on MSA definitions can be obtained from the U.S. Census Bureau website at <u>http://www.census.gov/population/www/estimates/metroarea.html</u>.

State–This field lists all 50 U.S. States and the District of Columbia. If an MSA is selected, then only those States in that area will be available through the menu box.

County–This field lists all U.S. Counties. If a State or MSA is selected, then only those counties in that area will be available through the menu box.

Cost Per Ton–This field provides a list of threshold criteria for the cost per ton of pollutant emissions reduced that range from less than \$1,000 per ton to less then \$20,000 per ton. Cost refers to the total annual cost of the subject control measure.

NAICS–This field lists 3-digit North American Industry Classification System (NAICS) codes that identify broad industrial sectors across the United States. NAICS definitions (2002 Revisions) can be accessed from the U.S. Census Bureau website at <u>http://www.census.gov/epcd/naics02</u>.

SIC–This field lists 2-digit Standard Industrial Classification (SIC) codes that identify broad industrial sectors across the United States. SIC look-up tables can be obtained from the U.S. Census Bureau at http://www.census.gov/epcd/www/naicstab.htm.

Sector–This field lists broad Sectors of emission sources including Utilities (by fuel), Nonutility (by fuel), Area, Onroad mobile (by gas or diesel), and Nonroad (by gas or diesel). Please note that not all Sectors have available control measures.

SCC–This field lists 8-digit Source Classification Codes (SCC). If a Sector is selected, then only SCCs that correspond to that Sector will be displayed.

Please note that these filtering criteria fields are not mutually exclusive so that not all fields may be used in conjunction with each other as shown in Figure III-2.

Figure III-2. Possible Combinations of Criteria Fields

The Filtering Criteria Fields also includes a "MAX CONTROL" checkbox that provides you with the capabilities of automatically applying the most stringent control measure on a source for the pollutant of interest without respect to costs. The most stringent control is defined as that control measure achieving the highest percentage of emissions reductions. Once you have created your control scenario using the filtering criteria, you can select this button and re-select the *Run Query* command to re-filter the control measures displayed in the Database Grid to include only the most stringent control measures.

Along with the criteria filtering controls, there are two data manipulation check boxes labeled "OM Values" and "Sensitivity". OM is an abbreviation for operating and maintenance costs. When the "OM Values" check box is clicked, the OM Value columns are calculated. When the "Sensitivity" checkbox is checked, the currently selected control set is used to recalculate the pollutant reductions and costs. This checkbox is greyed out if there is no currently selected control set.

2. User Commands

As shown in Figure III-1, the following command buttons are provided just below the Filtering Criteria area and allow you to apply the specified filters in querying the database and creating a control strategies scenario.

Run Query–This command queries the database and then displays in the Database Grid all of those control measures that match the criteria combination selected in the Filtering Criteria section.

	State	County	MSA	Region	SIC	NAICS	Sector	scc	Cost per Ton
State	•	•		•	•	•	•	•	•
County	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	•
MSA		•	•		•	•	•	•	•
Region	•	•		•	•	•	•	•	•
SIC	•	•	•	•	•	•			•
NAICS	•	•	•	•	•	•			•
Sector	•	•	•	•			•		•
SCC	•	•	•	•				•	•
Cost per Ton	•	•		•			•	•	•

Select All–This command selects all emission control measures displayed within the grid, i.e., checks the Add box for all displayed control measures. This command saves you from having to check every "Add" box manually, which would be a time consuming task when selecting a multitude of control measures.

Unselect All–This command unselects all emission control measures displayed within the grid, i.e., unchecks the "Add" box for all displayed control measures.

View All–This command displays all of the emission control measures from the most recent query within the Database Grid both selected and unselected.

View Selected–This command displays current and previously selected emission control measures within the Database Grid. That is, those control measures for which the "Add" box is currently or had been previously checked in creating a control strategy.

Reset Criteria–This command returns the Control Scenarios Module interface to the initial start-up state. That is, all filtering criteria fields are returned to defaults.

3. Control Summary Fields

The following fields are shown across the bottom of the Control Scenarios Module interface and provide useful summary information by pollutant based on the control measure selections as displayed within the Database Grid.

Tons Reduced–This field provides the sum of the emissions reduced in absolute terms (tons) for the selected emission control measures.

Annual Tons–This field provides the sum of the emissions for which controls are applicable (i.e., controllable tons rather than total emissions) for the selected emission control measures.

Percent Reduction–This field provides the ratio of the Tons Reduced to Annual Tons for the selected emission control measures.

Total Cost–This field provides the sum of the Total Cost values across all of the selected emission control measures.

These Summary Fields are controlled by the "Auto Summarize" checkbox and the "Summarize" command. When the Auto Summarize checkbox is selected, each of the fields is automatically refreshed when additional records are selected (or deselected) within the Database Grid. When the "Auto Summarize" checkbox is not selected, records can be selected and deselected without updating the Summary Fields. In this case, the "Summarize" command can be used to update the fields as desired.

B. CREATING A CONTROL SCENARIO

This section provides step-by-step instructions on how to create a control strategy scenario using this module. An example is provided throughout these instructions to assist you with this application in tutorial fashion. Defining a control strategies scenario is a cumulative process within AirControlNET. In summary, the process begins by applying the filtering criteria to query the control measures database and then selecting the control measures of interest within the Database Grid display for inclusion in a control strategy scenario. You can then save and export the resulting database or repeat this process multiple times to accumulate all of the control measures to be part of the control strategy scenario. The Control Scenarios Module interface facilitates and simplifies this process for you as detailed in the remainder of this section.

Please note that you can begin this process by opening a previously saved control strategies scenario by selecting Open from the Control Scenarios Module toolbar menu. The Open Scenario Dialog will appear so that you can open the desired scenario file as a starting point in creating your new control strategies scenario. Once selected, the Database Grid should now be populated with the corresponding control measures.

The following generic steps illustrate how to create a control scenario within the Control Scenarios Module:

Step 1: Apply Filtering Criteria to Define Query of Control Measures Database

You begin the process of creating a control strategies scenario by applying the appropriate filtering criteria to select those control measures that match the criteria of interest. The interface facilitates these selections so that defining the query is a simple process involving your selection of the desired filtering criteria from the drop-down menus. Please note, as shown in Figure III-2, the filtering criteria fields are not all mutually exclusive. Figure III-3 shows the example where the following filtering criteria were selected for the data query:

Pollutant = NO_x Region = Eastern United States Sector = Coal-fired Electric Utilities

Step 2: Select Run Query Command to Initiate Query of Control Measures Database

You initiate the query of the control measures database by selecting the Run Query command. The matching control measures will then be displayed within the Database Grid area. Figure III-4 shows, for the example query from Step 1 above, the resulting records as displayed in the Database Grid for you to make further refinements, if necessary, as part of creating the control strategies scenario. The resulting Database Grid shown in Figure III-4 includes the records for NO_x control measures available in AirControlNET that are applicable to Coal-fired Electric Utilities located in the Eastern United States.

Step 3: Select Individual Control Measures within Database Grid

Once the Database Grid contains the potential control measures of interest, you can select individual control measures to include in your scenario by clicking the corresponding "Add" checkbox within the display grid. This checkbox is found in the first column on the left-hand side of the display grid. Once you have selected individual control measures, then emission reductions and cost results will be displayed in the Control Summary section of the interface. To facilitate this selection process, you can apply the Select All query command to check all of the control measures within the display grid and Unselect All to uncheck all selections. In addition, you can sort the displayed control measures by clicking on the desired column heading within the Database Grid. Reviewing these results can be used to determine whether your requirements are satisfied in terms of emission reductions (tons or percent) by pollutant.

As shown in Figure III-5, the database has been sorted by the "Control" column and then selected all "NGR" controls within the Database Grid. Selecting these control measures results in a 108,496 ton reduction in NO_x emissions, a 43.17% reduction (as shown in Control Summary section).

🕐 AirContro INET v4.0 Fie Edit Tools Quayse) - Control Scenarios : <u>C</u> ata <u>H</u> elp	- 20 10_20041214, Cas	t Year: 2000		
POLLUTANT NDX V NAICS	REGION Fastern US	MSA ST AI AI AI SICIOR SO		COUNTY	MAX CONTROL
Run Query	Select All	Al -Utility -Utility - Chai -Utility - Natural SociOil -Utility - Oil -Utility - WorouB oncass Utility - Other		View Selected	Reset Criteria
Total Annual Cost Tons Reduced Annual Tons Percent Reduction	HOx VOC	SOZ PM10	PM2.6 NH3	Auto Summarizo	Summarize CO Hg

Figure III-3. Control Scenario Filter Selection

AirContro INET v4.0 - Control Scenarios - 2010_20041214, Cost Year: 2000										
<u>Ele Edit T</u> ools <u>A</u> naysis (<u>C</u> ata <u>H</u> elp									
			ст	ATE	0					
	setem LIC - JI	<u>~</u>	- 01	AIL	- 4		-	MAX C	ONTROL	
1.5	zalem var									
MAICS S	ic SU	CIDR	SC	C	C	DST PLR	ION		U UFS	
All 💌 A	લે 💽૫	liliy-Coa	💌 All		B A	l.		SUN21	TIMITY	
Run Query	Select All	Unselect	All I	View A	ui -	View Se	lected	Keset C	riteria	
Control	Source	PM10	PM2.6	EC I	0C	NO)	802	200	NH: 🔺	
SCR.	Hiiy Biler - CalWall	0.000	0.00	0.000	0.001	1497 74	n nro	C C00	C C00	
Repowering	Utity Dollars - Coal-Fires	0.000	0.000	0.000	0 000	2495.07	6540.79	C.C00	C.C00	
SCR	Uting Boiler Coal@Vall	0.0.0	0.000	0,000	0.001	1/98	J.J.U	LLUU	LLUU	
Repowering	Utility Builers - Coal-Fired	0.000	0.000	0.000	0 000	2483.48	6513.34	C.C00	C.C00	
	Utify Doiler - CoalW/all	0.000	0.000	0.000	0 002	1490.04	0.000	C.COO	C.C00	
П Кароу/сила	Utiny Bailaro - Coa-Firbo	0.0.0	J.JUU	ULUU	0.00	24873	6529.78	LLUU	LLUU	
SIR SIR	Utility Boller - Coalimial	0.000	0.000	0.000	0 000	1485.27	0.000	C.C00	C.C00	
SCR .	Liting Driller - ChallAMail	0.000	D 700	0.000	0.007	C097.12	2,200	r rnn	C C00	
🔲 Кароудсина	Uting Balate - Coal-Fires	0.0.0	J.JUU	0.000	0.001	2310.70	463297	0.00	LLUU	
M3R	Utility Boller - Coal/Tangent	0.000	0.000	0.000	0 000	274.599	0.000	C.C00	C.C00	
SCR .	HiiyBi⊫r⊸Cal/Tangen	0.000	D 200	0.000	0.007	1007 36	2,200	C COO	C C00	
Repowering	Utility Bailaro - Coal-Firzo	0.000	0.000	0.000	0 000	457,635	4210.03	C.COO	C.C00	
NGR I	Utility Boller - Coal/Tangen	0.000	0.000	0.000	0 000	300.158	0.000	C.C00	C.C00	
SCR	HiiyBi⊫r⊸Cal/Tangen	0.000	0.00	0,000	0.001	1107 52	D DC0	C C 00	C C00	
Ropoworing	Utility Bailers - Coal-Firze	0.000	0.000	0.000	0 000	600.230	4340.70	000.0	▼ 003.3	
Total Annual Cost	80					Auto 5	ummerize	Sum	marizo	
	NOX VOC	502	PM10	PM2.6	NH3	UC	HC	100	Hg	
Tone Raduced	n n	100	n	n.	1	n	Û	1	0,0000	
Annual Tons	0 0	12	0	0	0	0	0)	C.00000	
Percent Reduction	0.00 % 0.00 % 0		0.00 %	0.00 %	0.00 %	0.00%	0.00 %	0.00 %	0.00%	

Figure III-4. Control Scenario Database Grid After Running Query

🗢 AirContro INET 🕫.0	- Control Scenarios - 20	010_20041	214, Cast	Year: 200	00				
Ele Edit Itols (ynaysis	<u>C</u> ata <u>H</u> elp								
POLLUTANT	REGION MS	A	ST	ATE	с				
10x -	Eastern US 🚽 🕹		T All		T A	1	-		ONTROL
									THE
NAICS	SIC SI	CIDR	sc	C	C	DST PLR	IDN		I UF S
All 💌	Al 💌l.	Jiliy-Cua	▼ All		BA	1	<u> </u>	SI NSI	NUTY
Pup Oneru	Eclose All	Uncelle et	AU	Marine B		Marine	Le de d	Depart C	decia
Kun Query	SELECTION	Ouselect	240	VICW A	an an	VIEW Se	le cte a	Reserc	nteria
Control	Source	PM10	PM2.6	EC I	oc	NO	802	200	NH: *
S NGR	Hitiy Briter - CalWAI	0.000	D D00	0.000	0.001	357-001	D 000	C C00	007.7
S NOR	Utility Doiler - Coal#Vall	0.000	0.000	0.000	0 000	C00.600	0.000	C.COO	003.3
	Uting Boiler Coal@Vall	0.0.0	J.JUU	0,000	0.001	1061.10	J.J.U	LLUU	LLUU
MGR	Utity Builer - CualWVHI	0.000	0.000	0.000	0 000	325,400	0.000	C.C00	C.C00
Mar Nar	Utility Doiler - Coal#Vall	0.000	D.000	0.000	0 002	06.600	0.000	C.COO	002.0
	Uting Bailer - Cyclene	0.0.0	J.JUU	0,000	0.001	1532.71	J.J.U	L.LUU	LLUU
M3R	Utility Boller - Cyclone	0.000	0.000	0.000	0.000	1469.94	0.000	C.C00	C.C00
MOR .	Litity Drile: - ChalAMal	0,000	D DOOL C	0.000	0.007	592.075	3,300	r roo	C C00
MOR .	Uting Bailer - Cool@Vall	0.0.0	J.J00	0.00	0.007	434,953	U.JCU	CLUU	LLUU
M3R	Utility Boller - Coalimial	0.000	0.000	0.000	0 000	99.300	0.000	C.C00	003.3
NGR .	HiiyBi⊩r-CalA%al	0.000	D DOC C	0.000	0.00-	89 212	2,200	L COU	C C00
MOR NOR	Utility Bailer - Caal/Mall	0.000	0.000	0.000	0 002	122.638	0.000	C.COO	002.0
Repowering	Utility Bollers Coal Fired	0.000	0.000	0.000	0 000	2/ 95.07	6543.79	C.C00	C.C00
🔲 R-quivz-ring	Hiiy Bilers - Cua-Fired	0.000	0.00	0.000	0.001	748° 46	6513.54	C COO	007.7
Repowering	Utity Bailere - Coal-Firze	0.000	0.000	0.000	0 002	2480.73	6529.78	C.C00	€.C00 -
Total Annual Cost	01 00.271.920					V Auto 5	ummerize	Sum	marizo
	NOX VDC	602	PM10	PM2.6	NH3	UC	HC	50	Hg
Tone Raduced	100,4=0 0		n	n	٦	n	n	1	0,000
Annual Tons	251.255 0	12	0	0	С	0	0	C0 07D	C.00000
Percent Reduction	40.17 % 0.00 %	0.00% 0	0.00%	0.00 %	0.00%	0.00%	0.00 %	0.00 %	0.00 %

Figure III-5. Database Grid and Summary Fields with Selected NO_x Controls

You can now select the View Selected command to view only the selected controls, i.e., only the "NGR" control measures with "Add" checkbox selected. Selecting the View All command allows you to toggle back to the previous Database Grid and display both selected and unselected control measures from the current user query.

At this point, you may have completely defined your control strategy scenario by completing the 3 steps described thus far. If so, then you can refer forward to Section C "Saving a Control Scenario" and Section D "Exporting and Reporting." However, as noted previously, the creation of a scenario can be a cumulative process in that additional controls can be added to this initial set of control measures. In this case, you can refer to the next step that describes combining multiple sets in creating the overall control strategy scenario.

Step 4: Continue Selection of Individual Control Measures

To make additions to the current scenario, you must first select the *Reset Criteria* command that will eliminate previous filtering criteria to begin the process from Step 1 above. For our example, the filtering criteria have been reset and then the following filtering criteria were selected, as shown in Figure III-6, as part of the additional query:

Pollutant = SO₂ Region = Western United States Sector = Coal-fired Electric Utilities

As shown in Figure III-6, the database has been sorted by the "Control" column and then the Select All command was used to select all control measures displayed within the Database Grid, i.e., all "FDG Wet Scrubbers." The addition of these control measures results in a reduction of SO_2 emissions of 109,883 tons (as shown in Control Summary section).

You can now select the View Selected command to view *all* of the selected controls, i.e., the initial and subsequent sets of control measures. As shown in Figure III-7, the Database Grid now displays the initial " NO_x control measure" set and the most recent " SO_2 control measure" set. All of these control measures will remain selected and part of the control strategy scenario until the "Add" checkbox is deselected or the application is terminated.

Please note that the Control Summary section will continue to record the emission reductions and cost results across pollutants for *all* of the selected control measures. This cumulative tracking of results should assist you in creating your control strategy scenario and to be sure control measures of interest are still selected or confirm that they were deselected. Selecting the View All command allows you to toggle back to the previous Database Grid and display both selected and unselected control measures from the most recent user query. This step may be repeated indefinitely until you have created your control strategy scenario. Once the scenario is completely defined, then you can refer forward to Section C "Saving a Control Scenario" and Section D "Exporting and Reporting."

Figure III-6. Database Grid and Summary Fields with Selected NO_x and SO₂ Controls

🐣 AirContro NET 🕫.0	- Control Scenari	ios - 20	10_20041	214, Cast	Year: 20	00				
<u>Ele Edit I</u> tols (Jnaysis	<u>C</u> ata <u>H</u> elp									
POLITANT	REGION	MS		51	ATE	c				
302	Western 17	- Al		T AI		T A	1	-	MAY (ONTROL
107	Verality 10								-	
MALCS	SIC	SI (CIDR	SC	c	C	OST PER	ION		AT UPS
All 🗾 💌	Al	🔻U	liliy-Cua	💌 Al		B A	1	-	ST NS	TIMOY
	24	1					-			
Run Query	Select All		Unselect		View A	M	View Se	lected	Reset (riteria
			Conservation of the							
									-	
Control	Source		PM10	PM2.6	EC .	00	NO	802	200	NH: 🔺
FGDWH Strubber	lliiy Bilers - Me	dian Sal	0.000	n nnn	0 C 0 0	0.007	0.000	243140	C C 00	<u> </u>
GD Wet Scrubber	Utity Doilers - Me	siun Sul	0.000	0.000	0.000	0 000	0.000	01 5.227	003.0	002.2
FGD Wet Sprubber	Utiny Boilers Me	dun Sul	0.0.0	0.00	0,00	0.001	0.0.0	1152.52	ULUU	C.LUU
FGD WALS_robber	U.ii.y Builers - Me	dium Sul	0.000	0.000	0.000	0 000	0.000	9030.78	C.COO	C.C00
🗹 FGD Wet Scrubber	Utity Doilers - Me	siun Sul	0.000	0.000	0.000	0 000	0.000	2654.70	C.COO	003.0
FCD Wat Scrubber	Utinº Ballaro - Ma	dun Sul	0.0.0	J.J00	ULUU	0.001	0.0.0	3913.A7	LLUU	LLUU
FGE(Wet Scrubber	Utility Bollers – Me	elun Sul	0.000	0.000	0.000	0 000	0.000	2429.28	C.C00	C.C00
🗹 FGDWM Statibher	Litity Dhileto - Me	dium Sub	0.000	D DOC C	0.000	0.001	0.000	14005.0	C COO	C C 00
FCD Wat Scrubber	Utinº Bailero - Me	alun Sul	0.000	J.J00	0.00	0.005	0.0.0	383.710	CLU0	LLUU
FGE(Wet Schubber	Utility Bollers - Me	dun Sur	0.000	0.000	0.000	0 000	0.000	1005.21	C.CO0	C.C00
FGD WHIS rubber	Hiiy Bilers - Me	furn Sul	0.000	D D00	0.000	0.001	0.020	5372-10	C COO	C C00
FCD Wet Scrubber	Utity Bailero - Mo	dium Sult	0.000	0.000	0.000	0.000	0.000	7558.73	C.COO	C.C00
Repowering	Utilty Bollers Co	a Fl/BC	0.000	0.000	0.000	0.002	2751.12	3º 13.64	C.CO0	C.C00
R-mwy-ring	Hiiv Bi⊫rs - Cu	a-Fir-s:	0.000	0.00	0,000	0.001	5094 73	3112.18	C C00	C C00
	Utity Brikro - Co	a-Firce	0.000	0.000	0.000	0 000	2510,73	6015.71	C.CO0	C.CO0 -
T C										•
Total Annual Cost	\$355.570.720						V Auto 5	ummerize	Sun	marizo
	NOX VO	c	602	PM10	PH2.6	NH3	UC	HC	LI.	Hg
Torse Reduced	100,476	0 10	9.001	210	90	1	1	Û	1	0,0000
Annual Torra	251,255	0 14	7 907	573	250	5	2	2	40 003	C.20020
Percent Beducting	40.17 % 0.00 /	6 74	22 1	5.0%	35.00 %	300%	35.00 %	05.01 %	200.0%	C CO %

🗢 AirContro INET 🕯	r 4.0	- Control	Scenarios	- 201	0_2004	1214, Ca	it Year: 20	00				
<u>Fie Edit T</u> ools <u>A</u> na	a ysis	<u>Cata</u> Hel	р									
DOLLUTANT		RECION		NCA			TATE		COUNTY			
DOD		Westere	17						GUUNTT		H MAY (
10.2	-	western.	1 22						A)			
MALCS		SIC		SI C	OR	S	CC		COST PLR	IDN		II UES
All		AL	-	1,161	liy-Sua	• 4		В	Al		STNSI	TINTY
	14	20		20					-			
Run Query		Sele	ct All	1	Jnselec	τAll	View	AU	View Se	lected	Reset C	riteria
		-							10000000			
(Souther)		1. Learning of		1.1		10014	1	6363	DIC N	1.17.311	000	
		SCUICE	ikaro kia in	P	0.000	PP12 5	0.000		0.000	902 065/73	200	NH: *
CGD Wet Statut		Lhity Dr	ilera - Mediu	n Sult	0.000	1 2 20	0 0 0 0 0 0	0.00	0.000	0910.47	C C 00	C C00
FGD Wet Scrubb	='	Utiny Ba	ulers Mediu	n Sul	0.0.0	J.JU	1 01.00	000	0.0.0	24,2428	LLUU	LL00
FOD WAL STUDD	=r	U.ii.v B.	ilery - klediu	n Sul	0.000	0.00	0.000	0.00	0.000	14385.3	C.C00	C.C00
GD Wet Scrubb	=1.	Utity Do	ilera - Mediu	n Sul	0.000	0.00	0.000	0.00	0.000	303,710	C.C00	C.C00
FCD Wat Scrubb	cr	Utinº Bo	ulero - Mediu	n Sur	0.0.0	U	ULUU	000	0.0.0	10,6.21	LLUU	LLUU
FGD Wet Schubb	≡r	Utity Bo	liere - Mediu	n Sul	0.000	0.00	0.000	0.00	0.000	5372.10	C.C00	C.C00
🖸 FGD Wet Statub	•r:	Litity D-	ileus - Mediu	n Sult	0.000	1 110	n rnn	0.00	0,000	7570 70	r r nn	C C 00
MOR NOR		Utinº Ba	aler - Ceal/Le	ngent	0.000	່ ມ.ມ	0.00	ບບເ	153,138	J.J.U	CLUU	LLUU
M3R		Utity Bo	lier - Coalwy	90	0.000	0.00	0.000	0.00)0 100,300	0.000	C.C00	C.C00
INGR .		HiiyB	i⊩r - Cal/T-	ing-ni	0.000	i 110	n n n n n	0.00	17 254 100	0.000	C C00	C C 00
NOR		Utity Bo	iller - CoalMV	ୋ	0.000	0.00	0.000	0.00	162.636	0.000	C.COO	003.0
INGR I		Utity Bo	iller Coal/Ta	ingent	0.000	0.000	002.0	0.00	0 427.229	0.000	C.C00	C.C00
NGR		HiiyB	i⊢r - C_alW9	HII	0.000	1 1 10	n n n n n	0.00	17 271.650	1 100	C C 00	007.7
		Utity Bo	iiler - Coal/To	ngoni	0.000	0.001	0.000	0.00	02 747.738	0.000	[C.COO]	▼ 003.3
Total Annual Cost		1055.570	.720						💌 Auto S	Summerize	Sum	marizo
	1	ROX.	VDC	- 8	602	PM10	PM2.6	NH3	UC	HC	ເສ	Hg
Torse Reduced		100,476	n	109	001	210	90	n	1	n	٦	0.0000
Annual Tons		251.255	0	147	907	570	250	0	2	2	40 009	C.20030
Percent Reduction		40.17 %	0.00 %	74.2	5%	\$ 00.00	35.00 %	0.00%	05.00 %	05 01 %	0.00 %	C.C0 %

Figure III-7. Database Grid After View Selected Command

1. Maximum Control Scenario

For many emission sources, AirControlNET contains more than a single control measure and these can each have a different degree of control efficiency. As described in Section A.1 of this chapter, the Filtering Criteria Fields of the Control Scenarios Module interface includes a *"MAX CONTROL"* checkbox that allows you to automatically apply the most stringent control measure on a source for the pollutant of interest without respect to costs. The most stringent control is defined as that control measure achieving the highest percentage of emissions reductions. Once you have created your control strategies scenario using the filtering criteria, you can select the MAX CONTROL button and then re-select the Run Query command causing AirControlNET to re-filter the control measures displayed in the Database Grid and include only the most stringent control measures.

As shown in Figure III-8, the MAX CONTROL button has been selected for our previous example that includes both NO_x and SO_2 control measures across Coal-fired Electric Utilities in the Eastern and Western United States, respectively. The results are displayed within the Database Grid and the Control Summary section reflects the associated changes in emission reductions and costs. If this completely defines the control scenario, then you can refer forward to Section C "Saving a Control Scenario" and Section D "Exporting and Reporting." If not, then you can refer back to Step 4 above to continue adding control measures to the current maximum control scenario.

2. Operating and Maintenance (O&M) Cost Values

In AirControlNET, O&M cost information is available for many control measures. This O&M costs can be view in AirControlNET by selecting the O&M checkbox and running the data query with required filtering criteria (see Figure III-9). Following components of O&M cost can be viewed in the data grid : Operating Labor Cost, Maintenance cost, Supervisor cost, Maintenance material cost, Replacement Cost, Electricity Cost, Steam Cost, Fuel Cost, Waste Disposal Cost, Chemical Cost, Other Raw Material Cost, Other Utility Cost, Total Direct Annual Cost, Overhead Cost, Administrative Cost, Property Tax Cost, Insurance Cost, and Total Indirect Annual Cost. Note that not every cost is available for each control measure.

3. On-the-fly Sensitivity Calculation

If a default control set has been selected in the Control Set Tool, the "Sensitivity" checkbox will be enabled. When checked and the "Run Query" button is clicked, the grid results will contain only the measures specified in the selected control set. Furthermore, the control set's modified measure values will alter the reduction and cost values in the grid. The resulting screen is shown in Figure III-10.

@ #	irContro INET v	4.0	- Control Scen	arios -	2010_2	0041	214, Cast	Year: 20	00				
Ele	Edit <u>T</u> ools <u>A</u> na	i ysic	<u>D</u> ata <u>H</u> elp										
p			REGION		USA		ST	ATE		COUNTY			
	102	-	Eastern LIC		31		- 01	HIL			-		ONTROL
-	1.33		r asiem oa		~				_	~			
R	ALCS		SIC		SI CIDR		SC	C		CDST PER	IDN	O// V/	UTUES
1	All	Ξ	Al	-	Uliliy-	SUB	▼ All		в	AL		SINS	TIMITY
					22					-			
	Run Ouerv		Select Al		Unse	elect	All	View A	AII	View Se	lected	Reset (riteria
								110111		non oo	10 040 1		
	100.00		10							1000		-	
	Control		Source		PM10	1	PM2.6	EC .	0C	NO)	802	200	NH: 🔺
	R-pulvz-ring		HiiyBi⊫rs-	Cna-Fir	-1:	0.000	n nnn	0.000	0.00	1957.70	4510.58	C0	<u> </u>
	Repowering		Utity Doilers -	Coa-Fin	sc i	0.000	0.000	0.000	0.00	2007.50	0471.00	003.0	003.3
	Repowering		Utiny Ballers	Loa Fr	90	0.0.0	0.00	0,00	0.00	11 2181.59	8610,58	LLUU	LLUU
	Repowering		Utity Builers -	Coa-Fin	at I	0.000	0.000	0.000	0.00	2194.96	8358.22	C.COO	C.C00
	Repowering		Utity Dollers -	Coa-Fin	× I	0.000	0.000	0.000	0.00	2025.07	10091 0	C.COO	003.0
	Кароуланар		Utinº Balaro -	Log+r	×	0.0.00	J.J00	01.00	UUU	J_ 1602.48	6323.54	LLUU	LLUU
	SIR		Utility Boller - 0	caloval		0.000	0.000	0.000	0.00	1485.27	0.000	C.C00	C.C00
	SCR		Hity Driler - C	tal/Mail	6 <u> </u> 3	0.000	D 700	0.000	0.00	07 0097.12	2,200	r rnn	C C00
	SCR		Utinº Baler - C	col/ion	100	0.0.0	J.JU0	0.00	ິບັບເ	Ju 1005.96	J.J.U	C.LUU	LLUU
	SIR		Utity Baller - 0	cal/Tang	gent i	0.000	0.000	0.000	0.00	00 11100.52	0.000	C.C00	003.3
	SCR		HiiyBi⊫r-G	: HIMMHI		0.000	D 200	0.000	0.00	17 1802 53	0.000	L C C O O	C C00
	SCR		Utify Bailer - C	Cool/Mail		0.000	0.000	0.000	0.00	00 057,135	0.000	C.COO	0.00.0
	SCR		Utity Baller K	caleval	(j	0.000	0.000	0.000	0.00	1755.38	0.000	C.COO	003.0
	SCR		IliiyBi⊫r-G	i alvyali	8 ^{- 1}	0.000	0.00	0.000	0.00	17 1205 39	D DC 0	C COO	C C00
	SCR		Utity Bailer - C	Cool/Tony	Ince	0.000	0.000	0.000	0.00	00 3035.76	0.000	C.COO	C.CO0 💌
4													F
To	tel Annuel Cost		9C							Auto :	Summerizo	Sun	marizo
		14	HOM:	VDC	602		PM10	PM2.6	NH3	UC	HC	L.C.	Hg
То	ne Raduced		n.	0	1	s	n	0	1	n.	n	. j	0,0000
An	nual Tona		0	0	1	1	0	0	0	0	0	0	C.20030
Pe	rcent Reduction		0.00 % 0.0	0 %	0.00 %		0.00 %	0.00 %	0.00 %	0.00%	0 00 %	0.00 %	C.C0 %

Figure III-8. Maximum Control Scenario

🐣 AirContro INET 🕫	0 - Control	Scenarios	2010_20	041214, C	ist Year: 20	00				
Ele Edit Itols Anays	sic <u>C</u> ata <u>H</u> eip	2								
POLLUTANT	REGION		MSA		STATE		COUNTY			
10v •	Fastern U	0 🖃	N		All	-	AI.	-	MAX COM	TROL
WRITE	SIC		ELCIMD.	1	cer.				Z OM VALU	IFS
						P			CONSIDE	an v
AII	AT		Onlig- D	Ja 💌	Ell	D	81	<u> </u>	STASTIC	/1.1
Run Query	Sele	et All	Unsel	ect All	View	All	View Se	ected	Reset Crite	erla
		ede i breed ii			un obrohun ut	I says author				
Other Raw Mater Stric		ola Drecta	nnuovernes C	971	nin strative C	Property	ol ol	nde Gobten C	nar maire et 74 1971	
	0		<u>с</u>	971	0		0			
Ű	Ű		<u>i</u>	9/1	Ŭ		U U	ĩ	9/1	
0	0		c	965	0		0	c	965	5
0	0		C	953	0		0	C	955	3
Ū Ū	U		Ū.	933	U		U	- C	03:	
0	0		с	929	0		0	С	923	
0	0		C	923	0		0	ſ	922	-
U	0		L.	023	U		U	L.	022	5
0	0		C	923	0		0	С	923	3
0	0		r.	923	n		n	r	923	3
0	0		C	023	0		0	С	023	3
0	0		C	91.1	0		0	C	8	1
n	0		0	914	Ω		n	C.	914	4
0	ol		C	911	0		ol	Ċ,	0°1	
Total Annual Co <u>st</u>		SC					🔽 Auto Si	ummerizc	Summe	rize
	RO3	VDC	602	PM10	P112.6	NHA	UC	BC	120	Hg
Tom: Reduced	n.	n	1	n	0	٦.	n.	n	1	0.0000
Annual Tons	0	0	1	0	0	0	0	0	2	0.00000
Percent Reduction	0.00 %	0.00 %	0.00 %	0.00 %	0.00 %	0.00%	0.00%	0 00 %	0.00 %	0.00%

Figure III-9. O&M Cost Component Values For Control Measures

\varTheta AirContro INET 🕫 . 0	- Control	Scenarios	- 2010_200	41214, Cast	Year: 19	97				
<u>Fie Edit T</u> ools <u>A</u> naysis	<u>C</u> ata <u>H</u> elp)								
DOLLUTART	BECION		MCA	67	ATE	~				
POLLUTAN	REGION		MSA	5	AIE	U I	UUNIT	_	-	
<u></u>	AI .		N	- AI		<u> </u>	a	2		ONTROL
NAICS	SIC		SECTOR	so	æ	C	OST PER	ION		UUES
211	41		31	7 61		B a	1	-	IN SENSI	TIVITY
	A1	100	14							
Run Query	Sele	et All	Unsele	ct All	View A	All	View Se	lected	Reset C	riteria
Control	Scurce		PM10	PM2.6	нÚ	oc	NOn	802	200	NH:
Creation Applices	H y O: H	ralio st	0.0	00 C C 0C	0.000	0.001	0.000	0.000	C C 00	15 451
Chemical Additives	Hog Ope	rations -	0.0	00.00	0.000	0 001	0.000	0.000	C.COO	17.000
Chemical Additives	Hog Ope	rations	0.0	JU J.JUU	0.00	0.001	0.0.0	J.J.U	LLUU	14.780
Crienical Additions	Huy Obe	raliu v	0.0	00.00	0.000	0 000	0.000	0.000	C.C00	17.588
Chemical Additives	Hog Ope	ations .	0.0	00.00	0.000	0 001	0.000	0.000	C.COO	0.710
Chemical Additives	Hog Occ	chore	0.0	JU J.JUU	ULUU	U UU_	0.0.0	J.J.U	LLUU	17,588
Chemical Additives	Hog Obe	ratione	0.0	00.00	0.000	0 000	0.000	0.000	C.C00	17,£88
Chemical Additives	Ling Oue	adiona I	0.0	חחר ר חר	0.000	0.001	0.000	0.000	C C 00	14 01
Chemical Additives	Hog Occ	conortes	0.0	JU J.JUU	0.00	0.002	0.0.0	0.000	LLUU	7,201
Chemical Additives	Hog Orse	rations	0.0	00.00	0.000	0 000	0.000	0.000	C.COO	17.588
Chemical Applices	H ŋ O:e	ralio x	0.0	מחרור מר	0.000	0.007	0.000	0.000	C COO	5 699
Cherrical Additives	Hog Occ	ratione	0.0	00.00	0.000	0 000	0.000	0.000	C.COO	7.547
Chemical Additives	Hog Obe	rations	0.0	00.00	0.000	0 000	0.000	0.000	C.C00	10:177
Crenical Auditives	Н ц О:н	ralio x	0.0	חחר ר חר	0,000	0.001	0.000	0.00	C C 00	17 688
Cherrietl Aeditives	Hog Occ	ratione	0.0	000.0	0.000	0 002	0.000	0.000	C.CO0	17.588 -
Total Annual Cost		90					Auto S	ummerizo	Sum	marize
	NOx	VDC	502	PM10	PM2.6	NH3	UC	EC		Hg
Tone Raduced	n.	0	1	n	n	٦	0	Û	1	0,0000
Annual Tons	0	0	100	0	0	0	0	0	0	C.20000
Percent Reduction	0.00 %	0.00 %	0.00 %	0.00 %	0.00 %	0.00%	0.00 %	0.00 %	0.00 %	0.00 %

Figure III-10. On-the-fly Sensitivity Calculation for Control Measures

C. SAVING A CONTROL SCENARIO

To save a control strategy scenario, you can select "Save As" under File from the Control Scenarios Module toolbar menu. Please note that before saving a scenario it is advisable to view the currently selected control measures by clicking the View Selected command to confirm that the data set matches the desired criteria. Upon selecting "Save As" under the File toolbar item, the Control Scenario File "Save As" Dialog box will appear as shown in Figure III-11. The default path will be the AirControlNET directory folder. You should define the scenario file name and then save it by selecting the Save button. Control scenario files should be saved with a "CCS" file extension to facilitate their identification.

D. EXPORTING AND REPORTING

This section provides instructions on the exporting and reporting of a control strategies scenario.

1. Exporting Data from a Control Scenario

By selecting Export under File from the interface toolbar menu, you can export the following types of data files reflecting the control scenario for use in subsequent analysis:

- ! Measure File. You can export the current scenario displayed in the Database Grid to a range of file formats, namely Dbase (*.DBF), Excel spreadsheet (*.XLS), or text file (*.TXT). You simply select Measure File after selecting Export under File from the interface toolbar menu. The Measure File "Save As" Dialog box will appear as shown in Figure III-12. The default path will be the AirControlNET directory folder. You should define the measure file name and then save by clicking the Save button. The measure file will then be created and available for further analysis. Please note that Excel files are limited to 16,383 rows. Use a different export format if you control measure grid contains more then 16,382 data records.
- REMSAD-ST Script File. You can export the emission reductions information into a control factors file, or input script, for the REMSAD-ST air quality model. You simply select REMSAD-ST Script under Export from the interface toolbar menu. The REMSAD-ST Script "Save As" Dialog box will appear as shown in Figure III-13. The default path will be the AirControlNET directory folder. You can define the REMSAD-ST input script file name and then save by clicking the Save button. This file must be saved as a text file (*.TXT). You will be prompted separately to provide "user name" and "scenario description" for documentation purposes (more details with screen shots are available in Chapter V). This file will then be created and available for use in the REMSAD-ST air quality model.

Save As			? 🔀
Save in: 🗀	AirControlNET Data	6	È 💣 🌆 -
Save Control	control_scenario		Save
Save as <u>t</u> ype:	CCS	-	Cancel
			<u>H</u> elp
			Code Page

Figure III-11. Control Scenario File Save As Dialog Box

Save As			? 🔀
Save jn: 🔁	AirControlNET Data	· 🕁 🔁	•
Export	measures_file		Save
Save as <u>type</u> :	Table/DBF (*.dbf)		Cancel
			<u>H</u> elp
			Code Page

Figure	III-12.	Measure	File Save	As	Dialog	Box
	··· · —·					

Save As		? 🔀
Save in: 🛅	AirControlNET Data 🛛 🚽 🗲 🔁	-10 *
Export	remsadscript	Save
Save as <u>t</u> ype:	File (*.txt)	Cancel
		<u>H</u> elp
		<u>C</u> ode Page

! Control Cost File. You can export the total annual costs of your control strategy into a spreadsheet file for use in economic impact models (e.g., ISEG's EMPAX-CGE model). You simply select Control Cost File under Export from the interface toolbar menu. The Control Cost File "Save As" Dialog box will appear as shown in Figure III-14. The default path will be the AirControlNET directory folder. You can define the Control Cost file name and then save by clicking the Save button. The control cost file will then be created and available for further analysis.

2. Reporting Data from a Control Scenario

By selecting Report under File from the interface toolbar menu, you can report the following types of pre-formatted templates reflecting the control scenario for use in subsequent analysis and/or presentation:

- Emissions Summary. You can produce an emissions summary report using state, county, MSA, pollutant, sector, NAICS, cost per ton, and max control filters. The report includes number of records, measure name, affected source, emissions before control, incremental reductions, emissions after control, percent reduction and cumulative emissions data. This report can be printed from this screen or exported as an Excel (*.XLS), database (*.DBF) or comma delimited file (*.CSV). Please note that Excel files are limited to 16,383 records.
- ! Cost Summary. You can produce a cost summary report using state, county, MSA, pollutant, sector, NAICS, cost per ton, and max control filters. The report includes number of records, measure name, affected source, total cost, cost per ton and cumulative cost data. This report can be printed from this screen or exported as an Excel (*.XLS), database (*.DBF) or comma delimited file (*.CSV). A more detailed description of these files with screen shots is provided in Appendix D "Exporting and Reporting Files."

Save As			? 🔀
Save in: 🛅	AirControlNET Data	- + 1	- 🖬 👈
Export Control	looptrol cost file		Č nuc
Save as <u>type</u> :	CSV	<u> </u>	Cancel
			<u>H</u> elp
			Code Page

Figure III-14. Control Cost File Save As Dialog Box

[This page intentionally left blank.]

CHAPTER IV. LEAST-COST MODULE

The Least-Cost Module provides the capability to create the least-cost set of control measures that achieves a specified emission reduction target as part of a control strategies and costing analysis. The interface for this module, as presented in Figure IV-1, provides a query-based tool to determine the set of control measures that will meet the emissions reduction target as specified in terms of absolute tons or as a percentage. This module facilitates such queries through pre-set filters that allow you to define criteria for selection of control measures and then create the resulting data set. This chapter begins by introducing the interface for the Least-Cost Module and provides details on the available data query options. Examples are provided to better illustrate these capabilities. The chapter concludes by presenting the options for exporting data and reporting the query results.

Total Controllable Tons:

In least-cost module, total controllable tons are defined as the sum of emissions from sources (i.e., plant/point/segment) that have been controlled within AirControlNET and selected for the specified query criteria.

For 1999 emissions inventory, nationwide total controllable tons for each pollutant by sector are listed in Table IV-1.

	Area		Onro	bad	Point	
	Uncontrolled	Controlled	Uncontrolled	Controlled	Uncontrolled	Controlled
Pollutant	Emissions	Emissions	Emissions	Emissions	Emissions	Emissions
VOC	10,812,750	5,459,791	5,564,026	5,564,026	2,061,167	99,820
NO _x	7,767,324	4,425,712	8,470,270	8,470,270	9,037,572	6,579,473
SO ₂	2,226,341	192,671	322,189	322,189	16,297,280	1,668,378
PM	5,869,957	4,557,568	188,328	188,328	673,288	310,873
NH ₃	4,507,679	3,518,580	265,533	265,533	195,345	0

Table IV-1. 1999 Nationwide Emissions by Pollutant and Sector

Consider following filtering criteria as an example for LCM module query:

State:	North Carolina (37)
County: 0	Chatham Co. (37037)
Pollutant:	NO _x
Cost per ton:	All
Target Reduction	s: 100%
Sector:	All Point sources (i.e., EGUs and NEGUs)
Cost Year:	1997
Inventory year: 1	999

😪 AirContro INET 🕫 . 0 - Least	t Cast Module - 2010_200412	14. Cost Year: 1997		
POLLUIANI	COSTPERION	REDUCTION TARGET	% REDUCTI	ON LARGET
MSA 10100 - Aberdeen, ED Micro 10140 - Aberdeen, V& Micro 10130 - Abliene TX Motropo 10220 - Ada, OK Micropolitar	pulitan Stali • politan Stali • Itan Statioti Stalistical •	car -	JNTY	×
NAICS 111 Crop Production 112 - Animst Freedoction 113 - Forestry and Lingging 116 Support Activities for Ac	ricu ture and -orbetry	SECTOR Utility Cool Utility - Natural S Utility - Cil Utility - Wood/Bio	as/Cil mato	
Run Query	Export File E	xport Script Rosot (Criteria Hide	Critteria
Number State Courty Measure	e Suarce	\$7Ton Inv. Reduct	e Cumiline, R≢Cumiline, C	UNISA SII -
Total Controllable Tons	Tome Reduced	Total Annual Cost	Average Annual Co D	no⊤tina C

Figure IV-1. Least-Cost Module Interface

Following control summary results are obtained for the query.

Total Controllable Tons = 5,420 tons Tons Reduced = 4,870 tons

When Percentage Reduction target is defined to say 50 percent, target reduction is calculated to 50 percent of total available reductions (i.e., 4,870 tons). So reduction target in absolute tons would be 2,436 tons. Due to the discrete nature of control reductions, tons reduced would be equal to or greater than 2,436 tons. Actual reductions achieved for 50 percent target reduction are 2,847 tons.

The most stringent control applied to a source is the actual control for the source. The output results of Least Cost Module give maximum applicable controls for a source required to reach to specified reduction target on least cost basis. Most stringent controls for the sources selected by least cost query are highlighted in the database grid. Only maximum control applied to the source (i.e., plant/point/segment) is exported to the output file.

A. OVERVIEW OF LEAST-COST MODULE INTERFACE

Upon selecting this module from the AirControlNET Main Interface, you are presented with the Least-Cost Module Interface as shown in Figure IV-1. There are five important components of this interface that you must be familiar with in order to create least-cost control scenarios, i.e., *Filtering Criteria, Reduction Targets, User Commands, Database Grid, and Control Summary.*

Filtering Criteria: The Filtering Criteria section allows you to define the set of control measures to be included as part of the least-cost control strategy scenario. Based on your selections across the wide range of filtering criteria, these least-cost control measures are displayed in the Database Grid. The wide range of drop down combo boxes gives you the ability to filter the database according to your specific requirements. Once the desired combination of criteria has been selected, you can specify the emission reduction targets (in either absolute tons or percentage) and then apply the User Commands as described below to obtain the matching set of control measures to be displayed within the Database Grid.

Reduction Targets: The Reduction Targets section allows you to define an emissions reduction target in terms of absolute tons or as a percentage so that this module can then determine the least-cost set of control strategies based on the selected filtering criteria. A percentage reduction target is translated into absolute tons using available reduction tons. Please note that due to the incremental nature of the calculations, the actual reduction amounts (either percentage or absolute tons) are greater than the desired reduction target. The actual amount reduced is displayed in the Tons Reduced Summary Field.

User Commands: The User Commands section of the interface provides different query options to facilitate creating control scenarios. After you have chosen the conditions for which the scenario is being created, the Run Query command executes the selected filters and displays the least-cost set of control measures matching those criteria in the Database Grid (described below).

The Export File and Export Script command button allow you to export the results shown in the Database Grid to a REMSAD-ST script (as described in section C). The Reset Criteria command button allows you to reset the control measures displayed in the Database Grid and begin a new filtering and/or selection process. The Hide Criteria command button allows you to hide the filtering criteria fields to gain a better view of the Database Grid. This button converts to Show Criteria once the Database Grid is expanded.

Database Grid: The Database Grid displays the set of least-cost control measures that are obtained from the AirControlNET database (Please see the AirControlNET Development report for details on the development of this database). Each row entry displayed in this grid represents an individual control measure as applied to a particular source. You may experience some delays when updating this grid due to the large database being accessed. Based on the filter criteria that you select for a data query, this grid area will display those control measures that match the selected criteria. The individual fields contained within this grid are listed and defined in Appendix B.

Control Summary: The Control Summary section provides you with useful summary or aggregate calculations based on the least-cost set of control measures that are displayed within the Database Grid. These summary results should help you confirm that your specified target was met and the associated total costs and costs per ton reduced. This summary information is updated for each new query.

1. Filtering Criteria Fields

These fields are shown in Figure IV-1 across the top of the Least-Cost Module interface and provide the various criteria for you to select through drop-down menus. Applying these filters will query the database and results in the Database Grid displaying the least cost set of control measures that match the selected criteria. Multiple selections can be made from the MSA, State, County, NAICS and Sector fields by holding down the CTRL key.

Pollutant–This field lists the available pollutants including PM_{10} , $PM_{2.5}$, EC, OC, NO_x , SO₂, VOC, NH_{3} , CO, and Hg.

Cost Per Ton–This field provides a list of threshold criteria for the cost per ton of pollutant emissions reduced that range from less than \$5,000 per ton to less then \$20,000 per ton. Cost refers to the total annual cost of the subject control measure.

MSA–This field lists the Metropolitan Statistical Areas (MSAs). The MSA field also includes micropolitan and consolidated areas. Further information concerning MSA definitions can be obtained from the U.S. Census Bureau website at: http://www.census.gov/population/www/estimates/metroarea.html

State–This field lists all 50 US States and the District of Columbia. If an MSA is selected, then only those States in that area will be listed.

County–This field lists all U.S. Counties. If a State or MSA is selected, then only those counties in that area will be available through the menu box.

NAICS–This field lists 3-digit North American Industry Classification System (NAICS) codes that identify broad industrial sectors across the United States. NAICS definitions (2002 Revisions) can be accessed from the U.S. Census Bureau website at <u>http://www.census.gov/epcd/naics02</u>.

Sector–This field lists broad Sectors of emission sources including Utilities (by fuel), Nonutility (by fuel), Area, Onroad mobile (by gas or diesel), and Nonroad (by gas or diesel). Please not that not all Sectors have available control measures.

Please note that these filtering criteria fields are not mutually exclusive so that not all fields may be used in conjunction with each other as shown in Figure IV-2.

Figure IV-2. Possible Combinations of Filtering Criteria Fields: Least-Cost Module 2. User Commands

	State	County	MSA	NAICS	Sector	Cost Per Ton
State	•	•		•	•	•
County	•	•	•	•	•	•
MSA		•	•	•	•	•
NAICS						-
Sector	•	•	•		•	•
Cost Per Ton						-

As shown in Figure IV-1, the following command buttons are provided just below the Filtering Criteria area and allow you to apply the specified filters in querying the database and creating a least-cost control strategies scenario.

Run Query–This command queries the database and then displays in the Database Grid all of those control measures that match the criteria combination selected in the Filtering Criteria section.

Export File–This command allows you to save the least-cost set of control measures displayed in the Database Grid to a range of file formats, namely Dbase (*.DBF), Excel spreadsheet (*.XLS), or text file (*.TXT). Please note that certain file types are limited in size, i.e. Excel files can only accommodate 16,363 rows of data.

Export Script–This command allows you to save the emission reductions information associated with your least-cost control scenario into a control factors file, or input script, for the REMSAD-ST air quality model.

Reset Criteria–This command allows you to return the Least Cost Module interface to the initial startup state. That is, all filtering criteria fields are returned to defaults so that a new data query can be performed.

Hide Criteria—This command allows you to move the filtering selection criteria out of view and expand the Database Grid to display more area and show the results of the database query. This should facilitate your review of the least-cost control measures. You can select the "Show Criteria" command located at the top right-hand side of the screen to return to the original screen.

3. Control Summary Fields

As shown in Figure IV-1, each of the following fields are shown across the bottom of the Least Cost Module interface based on the least-cost set of control measures shown in the Database Grid.

Total Controllable Tons—This field provides the sum of the emissions for which controls are applicable (i.e., controllable emissions rather than total emissions).

Tons Reduced–This field provides the sum of the emissions reduced in absolute terms (tons) for the selected emission control measures. Please note that this value is larger (or equal to) the Reduction Target (in tons).

Total Cost-This field provides the sum of the Total Cost values across all of the selected emission control measures.

Average Cost Per Ton–This field provides the average cost per ton that is equal to the Total Cost value divided by the Tons Reduced.

B. DEVELOPING A LEAST-COST CONTROL SCENARIO

This section provides step-by-step instructions on how to create a least-cost control scenario using this module. An example (using the NEI 2010 emissions data and the 1997 cost year) is provided throughout these instructions to assist you with this application in tutorial fashion. In summary, the process begins by selecting the pollutant of interest, entering the desired reduction target (by absolute tons or percentage), and then applying the filtering criteria to query the control measures database that will display the control measures of interest within the Database Grid. You can then save and export the resulting database. The Control Scenarios Module interface facilitates and simplifies this process for you as detailed in the remainder of this section.

The following generic steps illustrate how to create a least-cost control scenario within the Least-Cost Module:

Step 1: Select a pollutant and enter reduction target.

You begin the process of creating a least-cost scenario by first selecting the pollutant of interest (i.e., PM_{10} , $PM_{2.5}$, EC, OC, NO_x , SO₂, VOC, NH_{3} , CO, or Hg) and then enter your desired reduction target in one of the following ways:

Absolute ton reduction: In this case, you enter a reduction target in terms of number of tons that you desire to be controlled based on the available control measures within AirControlNET. This tonnage estimate should be entered in the top right-hand portion of the interface as shown in Figure IV-3. The example here shows a 100,000 ton reduction target for PM_{10} .

Percentage reduction: In this case, you enter a reduction target in terms of percent reduction from baseline emissions levels to be achieved based on the available control measures within AirControlNET. This percentage should be entered in the top right-hand portion of the interface as shown in Figure IV-4. The example here shows a 65% reduction target for PM_{10} .

Please note that the calculations performed in this module are incremental by lowest cost, causing the actual Tons Reduced to overshoot the desired Reduction Target. The actual reduction amount is displayed in the Tons Reduced summary field. The interface facilitates the entry of these inputs and then focuses you on selection of filtering criteria to define the region and sectors as the next step in creating your least-cost scenario.

Step 2: Apply filtering criteria to define query of control measures database.

This step involves applying the appropriate filtering criteria to select the regional and sectoral applicability of the emissions reduction target in determining the individual control measures that match the criteria of interest. The interface facilitates these selections so that defining the query is a simple process involving your selection of the desired filtering criteria from the drop-down menus. Please note, as shown in Figure IV-2, the filtering criteria fields are not all mutually exclusive. As shown in Figures IV-3 and IV-4, the following criteria were selected for determining the least-cost control scenario for both the absolute tons (Figure IV-3) and percentage (Figure IV-4) reduction targets (as specified in Step 1 above):

Cost Per Ton = All (default) State = Alabama, Arizona

It is important to note that you can select multiple entries within a filtering criteria field, say MSA, by holding down the CTRL button while selecting the entries that you want to include. In the example above, you must individually select each MSA of interest, i.e., those with counties in Alabama or Arizona. Multiple selections can be made from the State, County, NAICS, and Sector fields.

Step 3: Select Run Query command to initiate query of control measures database.

Document No. 05.09.007/9010.463

Note: The results of this query will be displayed on the screen, sorted based on the values displayed on the \$/ton column.
Figure IV-3. Least-Cost Scenario Resulting From an Absolute Ton Reduction Target: Show Criteria

AirContro NET v4.0 - Le	ast Cast Module - 2010_200	41214. Cost Year:	1997			
je Edit Tools Unaysis Da	ta <u>H</u> elp					
POLLUTANT PN10	COST PER TON अ	REDU O		iti % 0,000 📽 🗖	REDUCTION TAR	GE I 55
MSA	SIAIE		0	COUNTY		
10100 - Aberdeen, ED Mi 10140 - Aberdeen, VvA Mi 10130 - Abilehe TX Motro 10220 - Ade, OK Micropo	rrupulitan Stati Alapan empolitan Stati politan Statioti itan Statistical Stat	na a 001 * la	•	01001 - Autauga C 01000 - Daldwin Cr 01005 - Barbour Cr 01007 - Bibbi Co	n D	
NAICS			SECTOR			
112 - Animst Froeuction 113 - Forestry and Loggin 116 - Support Activities to	ng r Agriculture and - orbetry		Utility - Natur Utility - Cil Utility - Wood	al Gas/Cil Al omato		
Run Query	Export File	Export Script	Ras	et Criteria	Hide Criteria	1
Number State Courte Maar	In a Stores	S (Tu	u Inr Ru	tu tu Carro tuna Rafe	Such Inc. Cold Sa	
1 01 C77 Tabric	Fiter (Pulse Jet Type Minerel Product	Is-Other	12	10.7 10.7	1.540 22402	
2 UA LUS -abri	Fiter (Pulse Jet 1 yp Miners) Produc	is Uther	112	17.4 31.1	3,161 1642	
E 04 C03 Fabrik	Filler (Pulse Jet TypeMinerel Produc	ly - Olher	12	39.4 64.5	7,252 45420	
4 01 C70 no ex	sec Monitoring Frequimerel Produc	ls - Other	115	0.9 0C.4	7,041 10021	
5 U1 U15 SOLC	onservation Hans //onoultura hili		151	3.9 6∈.∞	7, 36 6 1160_	+
Total Controllable To	ns Tons Reduced	Total An	nual Cost	Avorago	Annual Cost / Ton	
	691	0.053	78 89	1483	783	
-			1001		105	

Figure IV-4. Least-Cost Scenario Resulting From a Percentage Reduction Target: Show Criteria

😁 AirContro INET 🕫. 0 - Lea	st Cast Module - 2010_20041	214. Cost Year: 1997		
POLLUIANI PM10	EDSTPERION	REDUCTION	IARGEI %	REDUCTION TARGET
MSA 10100 - Aberdeen, ED Micr 10140 - Aberdeen, V& Micr 10130 - Abliehe TX Motrop 10220 - Ada, OK Micropolia	pulitan Stati ← pulitan Stati ← pulitan Stati titan Statisti r Statistical ← Statistical ←	1	COUNTY 01001 - ALleuga C- 01003 - Daldwin Co 01005 - Barbour Co 01007 - Bibbi Co	
NAICS 111 Crop Production 112 - Anims Froquetion 113 - Forestry and Lingging 116 Support Activates for A	vericu ture and -oreetry	SECTO Unity Unity Unity Unity Unity	DR Cott Natural Gas/Cil Cil W/Dot/Biomoto	•
Number StateCourly Measur	e Scurce	\$/Tun Ir	ne. Reduct Quim Inc. Red	
Total Controllable Tona	Toms Reduced	Total Annual Co	et nversige . D	Annual Cost / Ton

You initiate the query of the control measures database by selecting the Run Query command. The least-cost set of control measures that achieve your emission reduction target will then be displayed within the Database Grid. Figures IV-5 and IV-6 show, for the example queries from Steps 1 and 2 above, the least-cost set of control measures as within the Database Grid. The resulting Database Grid shown in Figure IV-3 includes the records that achieve the absolute ton reduction target, while Figure IV-6 includes the records that achieve the percentage reduction target. The resulting control measures are given a record number based on their sorting according to the \$/Ton column so that the most cost-effective control is listed first (e.g., lowest \$/ton) and the last control displayed reflects the highest \$/ton necessary to meet your stated target. Selecting Hide Criteria will allow for a better view of the as shown in Panel (b) of each figure and selecting Show Criteria will from that view will return the screen to the original view as shown in Panel a of each figure.

Step 4: Export results into measures file, REMSAD script, or cost file.

Once your least-cost scenario is defined, then you can export the Measure File and REMSAD Script directly by using the Export File or Export Script user command buttons. You can also refer forward to Section C "Exporting and Reporting" to provide the above export files as well as a Control Cost File and for gaining an emissions or cost summary report associated with your least-cost scenario.

C. EXPORTING AND REPORTING

This section provides instructions on exporting and reporting the results of your least-cost control strategies scenario. Please note that you can also export the Measure File and REMSAD Script directly by using the Export File or Export Script user command buttons.

1. Exporting Data from a Least-Cost Control Scenario

By selecting Export under File from the interface toolbar menu, you can export the following types of data files reflecting the control scenario for use in subsequent analysis:

! Measure File. You can export the current scenario displayed in the Database Grid to a range of file formats, namely Dbase (*.DBF), Excel spreadsheet (*.XLS), or text file (*.TXT). You can simply select Measure File after selecting Export under File from the interface toolbar menu. The Measure File "Save As" Dialog box will appear as shown in Figure IV-6. The default path will be the AirControlNET directory folder and you may then define the measure file name and then save by clicking the Save button. The measure file will then be created and available for further analysis. Please note that Excel files are limited to 16,383 records.

Figure IV-5. Least-Cost Scenario Resulting From an Absolute Ton Reduction Target

PM10	•	COST PER All	R TON	REDUCTION	C0,000	% R	EDUCTION TAR
ISA			SIAH		COUNT	Y	
11 CO - Aberde 12140 - Aberde 12180 - Abilene 1220 - Atila Ok	en, SD Microp en, WA Microp , TX Metropol < Micropolitar	ool Ian Statl - pulitar Stat I tan Biatisti n Biatistina -	C1 - Alakama C1 - Alizona C5 - Alikansias FR - California		 01001 - 01003 - 01005 - 01107 - 	Autaligs Co Baidwin Cu Baibour Co Bibh Ch	
4.0% (Car							
AICS 11 - Cmp Inc	uction	****		SECI	- Cost		
AICS 11 - Crop Troc 12 Anima Pr 13 Forestry a 15 - Support A	untion Eduction Ind Localing Strillies fur Ag	ariculture and	Forestry	SECT .tuty Julity .tuty Julity	 Cost Natural Gas/C Off Wood/B on as 	:u :S	Illia Colorda
AICS 11 - Chip Thr 12 - Anima Pr 13 - Forestry a 15 - Support A Run Quen	euction Eduction nd Localing Stivities fui Ag	griculture and Export I	=urestry Filo Expo	sect . hity Jaity Jaity Jaity Tt Script	PR - Cost Natural Dias/C Oli - Wood/B on as Reset Crite	an Se	Hide Criteria
MICS 11 - Chip The 12 Anima Pr 13 Forestry a 15 - Support A Run Query mber Utste Co	urthan Eduction nd Localing Strilles fur Ag	gripulture and Export 1	Forestry Fillic Explo	Finity Filter	PR - ColeT Natural Gas/C Oll - Wood/Blom as Reset Critic	al Seria .m. inc i Keluu	Hide Criteria Im. Inc. 05//84
AICS 11 - Chip The 12 Anima Pr 13 Forestry a 15 - Support A Run Query mber State Co 1 01 077	urthan Eduction nd Locging Stylies fur Ag 	gripulture and Export f er (Pulsa Jat T	Furestry Fills Expo Gource (pythingral Products Other	rt Script	PR - CnRI Natural Gas/C OII - Wood/Blom as Reset Crite rd Reduct dOU - 3.7	al Seria .m. inc. i Keluu 13 7	Hide Criteria Im. Inc. 05//04 1 54C 22460
AICS 11 - Chip Indiana 12 Anima Prilita 13 Forestry a 15-Support A Run Query mber State Co 101 077 2 04 003	untion Eduction nd Locging Staties fur Ag Locging Locging Locging Fabric Fit Fabric Fit	gripulture and Export I er (Puloa Jat T er (Puloa Jat T	Furestry File Explo Oource (privineral Products - Other (privineral Products - Other	rt Script	PR - On FI Natural Disa/C OII - Woud/Blom as Reset Crite rd Reduct dOU - 3.7 - 7.4	orla .m. inc. i Ke Gu 13 7 211	Hide Criteria Im. Inc. 05//04 15-10 22/160 3 491 43420
AICS 11 - Chip Ind 12 Anima Pr 13 Forestry a 15-Support A Run Query mber Utste Co 101 077 2 04 003 3 04 005	urthan Eduction nd Locging Styllies fur Ag Linty Wessure Fabric Fit Fabric Fit Fabric Fit	gripulture and Export 1 er (Puloa Jat T er (Puloa Jat T er (Puloa Jat T	Furestry File Explo Uource Verbineral Products - Other Verbineral Products - Other	rt Script	PR - On FI Natural Disa/C OII - Woud/Blom as Reset Crite re Reduct (OU 18.7 17.4 38.4	orla .m. inc. i Ke Gu 13 7 	Hide Criteria Im. Inc. 05//04 1540 22460 3491 43420 7.232 43420
AICS 11 - Chip Ind 12 Anima Pr 13 Forestry a 15 - Support A Run Querr mber State Co 1 01 077 2 04 003 3 04 007 4 01 077	urthan Eduction nd Locging Styllies fur 4g Linty Vessure Fabric Fit Fabric Fit Fabric Fit Educeased	gripullure and Export 1 er (Pulse Jet T er (Pulse Jet T er (Pulse Jet T J Mordioring Fur	Furestry File Expo Uource Uource Updatasea Products - Other Universit Products - Other Universit Products - Other Universit Products - Other	Finity Image: Second state stat	PR - On FI Natural Disa/C OII - Woud/Blom as Reset Crite re Reduct (OU 13.7 17.4 33.4 0.9	orla .m. inc i Ke Gu 13 7 	Hide Criteria im. Inc. 05//04 1 540 22460 3 491 43420 7 232 43420 7 044 10021

									_
POLLUTA	NT		COST PER	TON	REDUCTION	TARGET	% RI	EDUCTION TAR	RGE
PM10		-	AL	-	•	112.099	•		63
MSA				STATE		COUNTY			
голов Ар	ordobn	SD Microco	olitan Etali 🔺	V1 "labama		L'LU1 .	Nutau ga Co		1
10 - Abi	erde∋n	WA vilcrop	ol tan Statl	04 - Arizona		C: C03 - :	Ealdwin Co		-
1920 - ADI 1920 - Adi	a OK N	k metrobolit icto to iten 3	eri Stelleti Statistical 💌	05 - Arkansas 06 - Celifornia			Earcouricio Fibla Co		
	u vate								
AICS					SECT	OR			
1: Crop	Frocup	t on			🔺 Utiliy	Coa			
12 - Anima	a Prud	uction			Utility	- Natural Gas/O	E		
13 - Fores	the arrel.	- C - C - C - C - C - C - C - C - C - C			the second se				-
		logging		S	Utility	- Ōil			
15-0.pc	or: Activ	it es for Agr	culture and l	orestry	Utity Vtity	- Oil - V/ood/Diomas:	3		
15-Ulpc	or: Activ	it es for Agr	cliture and I	orestry	Utiny	- Oil - Wood:Diomas:	3		
15-Ulpc Run O	or: Astw uery	it es for Agr	culture and l Export Fi	orestry	Script	- Oil - Wood:Diomas: Reset Crite	3 ria	Hide Critori	ia
15-U.pc Run G	or: Activ uery	it es for Agr	culture and l Export Fi	orestry le Export	Vility Vility Script	- Oil - V/ood/Diomas Reset Crite	ria	Hide Criteri	ia
15-ULpc Run G mber State	or: Activ u ery	it es for Agr	c_lture ard l Export Fi	orestry Ic Export Source	Script 8/101	- Oil - Wood/Diomas Reset Crite no. Heduct::Cu	nia m. Inc. Ho c u	Hide Criteri m Inc. Col/84	ia IS
15-U_pc Run () mber State 1 01	uery Count	it es for Agr	culture and l Export Fi r (Pulse Jet Tyt	orestry Ic Export Source Moneral Products - Other	Script \$/101 112	- Oil - Wood/Diomas Reset Crite no. Feduct: Cu 13.7	ria 11.17	Hide Criteri m Inc. CcW84 1,540 22460	ia 8
15-U_pc Run 0 mbor State 1 01 2 04	u ery Count 077	t ogg ng it es for Agr y Measure Factor Filer Factor Filer	culture and l Export Fi (Pulse Jet Ty) (Pulse Jet Ty)	orestry Ic Export Source Maneral Products - Other Maneral Products - Other	Script \$/101 112 112	- Oil - Wood/Diomas Reset Crite no. Heducts 13.7 17.4	n. Inc. Hc <mark>O</mark> 13.7 01.1	Hide Criteri m Inc. CcW8V 1,540 22463 0,491 40420	ia 8
15-U_pc Run 0 mbor State 1 01 2 04 3 04	or: Activ u ery <u>c Count</u> 077 002	y Measure Factor Her Factor Filer	culture and l Export Fi (Pulse Jet Ty- (Pulse Jet Ty- (Pulse Jet Ty-	orestry Ic Export Source Maneral Products - Other Maneral Products - Other Maneral Products - Other	Cript Script Sc	- Oil - V/ood/Ulomas Reset Crite no. Heduct: Cu 13.7 17 4 33.4	nia m. Inc. H.(C.) 13.7 01.1 64.5	Hide Criteri m Inc. CcM&A 1,540 22460 0,491 40421 7,232 43420	ia 8
15 - U_pc Run G mber State 1 01 2 04 3 04 4 01	or: Activ u ery c Count 077 005 U/2	y Measure Factor Her Factor Filer Factor Filer Increased f	culture and l Export Fi (Pulse Jet Ty- (Pulse Jet Ty- (Pulse Jet Ty- (Pulse Jet Ty- (Pulse Jet Ty-	orestry Ic Export Source Maneral Products – Other Maneral Products – Other Maneral Products – Other Maneral Products – Other	Vitiny Vitiny Script 8/101 112 112 112 115	- Oil - V/ood/Diomas Reset Crite no. Heduct: Cu 13.7 17.4 33.4 	nia m. Inc. H. (C 13.7 01.1 64.5 65.1	Hide Criteri m The CoMSA 1,540 22460 0,491 40421 7,232 43420 7,311 1,5821	ia 8
15-U_pc Run G mbor State 1 01 2 04 3 04 4 01 5 01	COUNT COUNT	y Measure Factor File Factor File Factor File Increased F Soll Conser	Culture and I Export Fi (Pulse Jet Ty: (Pulse Jet Ty: (Pulse Jet Ty: (Pulse Jet Ty: Vontanno -rea vation Plans	orestry Ic Export Source Marcal Products - Other Marcal Products - Other Marcal Products - Other Marcal Products - Other Marcal Products - Other Agricultural Tilling	Utility U	- Nil - V/ood/Ulomas Reset Crite no. Heducto Cur 13.7 17.4 33.4 	nia <u>m. Inc. Hd O</u> 13.7 01.1 64.5 65.1 69.3	Hide Criteri m The: CoW8A 1,540 22463 0,441 40420 7,232 43423 7,341 13821 7,936 11503	ia 8
15 - U_pc Run 0 mber State 1 01 2 04 3 04 4 01 5 01	077 077 002 012	y Measure Factor Her Factor File Factor File Increased F Soll Conser	culture and l Export Fi (Pulse Jet Ty- (Pulse Jet Ty-	orestry Ic Export Source Maneral Products - Other Maneral Products - Other Maneral Products - Other Maneral Products - Other Agricultural Tilling	Viriny Viriny Script 8/101 112 112 115 167	- Oil - V/ood/Uiomas Reset Criter no. Heduct: Cu 13.7 17.4 33.4 3.5	n. Inc. Hc U 113.7 01.4 64.5 65.1 69.3	Hide Criteri m Inc. CeW8A 7,540 22463 0,491 40421 7,232 43423 7,311 13821 7,936 11503	ia B

Figure IV-6. Least-Cost Scenario Resulting From an Percentage Reduction Target

- ! REMSAD-ST Script File. Export the emission reductions information into a control factors file, or input script, for the REMSAD-ST air quality model. You can simply select REMSAD-ST Script under Export from the interface toolbar menu. The REMSAD-ST Script "Save As" Dialog box will appear as shown in Figure IV-7. The default path will be the AirControlNET directory folder and you may then define the REMSAD-ST input script file name and then save by clicking the Save button. This file must be saved as a text file (*.TXT). You will be prompted separately to provide "user name" and "scenario description" for documentation purposes (more details with screen shots are available in Chapter V). This file will then be created and available for use in the REMSAD-ST air quality model.
- ! Control Cost File. You can export the total annual costs of your control strategy into a spreadsheet file for use in economic impact models (e.g., ISEG's EMPAX-CGE model). You simply select Control Cost File under Export from the interface toolbar menu. The Control Cost File "Save As" Dialog box will appear as shown in Figure IV-8. The default path will be the AirControlNET directory folder. You can define the Control Cost file name and then save by clicking the Save button. The control cost file will then be created and available for further analysis.

2. Reporting Data from a Least-Cost Control Scenario

By selecting Report under File from the interface toolbar menu, you can report the following types of pre-formatted templates reflecting the least-cost scenario for use in subsequent analysis and/or presentation:

- **! Emissions Summary.** You can produce an emissions summary report using state, county, MSA, pollutant, sector, NAICS, cost per ton, and max control filters. The report includes number of records, measure name, affected source, emissions before control, incremental reductions, emissions after control, percent reduction and cumulative emissions data. This report can be printed from this screen or exported as an Excel (*.XLS), database (*.DBF) or comma delimited file (*.CSV). Please note that Excel files are limited to 16,383 records.
- **! Cost Summary.** You can produce a cost summary report using state, county, MSA, pollutant, sector, NAICS, cost per ton, and max control filters. The report includes number of records, measure name, affected source, total cost, cost per ton and cumulative cost data. This report can be printed from this screen or exported as an Excel (*.XLS), database (*.DBF) or comma delimited file (*.CSV). Please note that Excel files are limited to 16,383 records.

A more detailed description of these files with screen shots is provided in Appendix D "Exporting and Reporting Files."

Save As			? 🛛
Save in: 🗀	AirControlNET Data	- E	
Export	remsadscript		<u>Save</u>
Save as type:	File (*.txt)	-	Cancel
			Help
			Code Page

Save As			? 🛛
Save in: 🛅	AirControlNET Data	- + E	➡ 🔳
Export Control	control_cost_file		<u>S</u> ave
Save as type:	CSV	-	Cancel
			Help
			Code Page

Figure IV-8. Control Cost File Save As Dialog Box

[This page intentionally left blank.]

CHAPTER V. SCRIPT BUILDER MODULE

The REMSAD-ST Script Builder Module provides the capability to develop emission control scenarios for execution in the REMSAD-ST air quality model. The interface for this module, as presented in Figure V-1, provides a quick and easy way to build text files reflecting emission reduction strategies that can be exported as a REMSAD-ST input script. The emission reductions are defined by pollutant control factors. This module facilitates the script development process through pre-set filters that allow you to define criteria for application of the specified pollutant reductions and then create the resulting input script for REMSAD-ST. This chapter introduces you to the Script Builder Module interface and provides details on the available options. Examples are provided to better illustrate these capabilities.

A. OVERVIEW OF SCRIPT BUILDER MODULE INTERFACE

Upon selecting this module from the AirControlNET Main Interface, you are presented with the Script Builder Module Interface as shown in Figure V-1. There are four important components of this interface that you must be familiar with in order to create your control scenarios, i.e., *Filtering Criteria, Pollutant Control Factors, User Commands*, and *Display Grid*.

Filtering Criteria: The Filtering Criteria section allows you to define individual control scenarios to be included as part of the REMSAD-ST script. You can select from a wide range of filtering criteria through drop down combo boxes that help you design the script according to your specific requirements. Once you have selected the desired combination of filtering criteria, you can specify the pollutant control factors for each pollutant of interest and then apply the User Commands as described below to develop a control scenario to be shown in the Display Grid.

Pollutant Control Factors: The Pollutant Control Factors section allows you to provide scaling factors to adjust the pollutant emissions in the REMSAD-ST baseline emission inventory for the various pollutants shown in Figure V-1. For example, a control factor of 0.80 is equivalent to a 20 percent emission reduction (i.e., 80 percent of the emissions remain). Pollutant control factors are available for NO_x , VOC, CO, SO_x, NH₃, SOA, PM₁₀ (coarse and fine particulate matter), PMC (coarse fraction particulate matter), and PM_{2.5} (fine fraction particulate matter).

User Commands: The User Commands section of the interface facilitates the development of your REMSAD-ST script. After you have chosen the filtering criteria and pollutant control factors, the Add command executes your selections and displays a new control scenario, i.e., row entry, within the Display Grid (as described below). The Remove Selected command button allows you to delete a control scenario, or row entry, that is no longer desired by removing any row entry that has its checkbox unselected. The Export Script command button allows you to export the results shown in the Display Grid to a REMSAD-ST script, while the Reset Criteria command allows you to reset the filtering criteria and begin a new filtering and/or selection process.

😁 AirContro INET 🕫.0	- REMSAD-ST	Script Builder - 2	2010_20041214	, Cost Year: 1997		
Ele Edit Tols Onaysis REGION SIC Al NOX VOC 1 DO	CO 1 NN	MSA All SECTOR All SOx 1.01	S S NH3 OF 1 TO	TATE II CC II SOA PI	COUNTY - All FACILIT B All M10 PMC 107	Y ID Y ID PM2.5 Y ∩r 1 ∩∩
Add		Remove Unsel	lected	Export Script		Reset Criteria
	SI UNIY SECI			NOx YOL CU - - - <tr tr=""> - -</tr>	SOx NH3 SOM	

Figure V-1. Script Builder Module Interface

Display Grid: The Display Grid shows the set of individual control scenarios that have been added by the user. Based on the filter criteria that you select for a data query, this grid area will display those control measures that match the selected criteria. Each row entry displayed in this grid represents an individual control scenario with the final script file comprising a single row or multiple rows. The individual fields contained within this grid are listed and defined in Appendix C.

1. Filtering Criteria Fields

These fields are shown in Figure V-1 across the top of the Script Builder Module interface and provide the various criteria for you to select through drop-down menus. Applying these filters will define the input script with results shown in the Display Grid based on the selected criteria.

Region–This field lists a range of broad regions that are typical of regulatory and policy analysis including:

- Eastern and Western continental United States. Eastern States are defined as the 37 OTAG States, defined as all states east of or touching the 100° line of longitude.
- ! The Ozone Transport Commission (OTC) <u>http://www.sso.org/otc/main/about.htm</u>
- ! Southern Appalachian Mountain Initiative (SAMI) <u>http://www.saminet.org</u>, and
- Regional Planning Organizations (RPOs) such as WRAP, WESTAR, LADCO, NESCAUM, MARAMA, CENSARA, and SESARM <u>http://www.epa.gov/air/visibility/regional.html</u>)

MSA–This field lists the Metropolitan Statistical Areas (MSAs). The MSA field also includes micropolitan and consolidated areas. Further information on MSA definitions can be obtained from the U.S. Census Bureau website at: <u>http://www.census.gov/population/www/estimates/metroarea.html</u>

State–This field lists all 50 US States and the District of Columbia. If a Region or MSA is selected, then only those States in that area will be listed.

County–This field lists all U.S. Counties. If a Region, State or MSA is selected, then only those counties in that area will be available through the menu box.

SIC-This field lists 2-digit Standard Industrial Classification (SIC) codes that identify broad industrial sectors across the United States. SIC look-up tables can be obtained from the U.S. Census Bureau at http://www.census.gov/epcd/www/naicstab.htm

Sector–This field lists broad Sectors of emission sources including Utilities (by fuel), Nonutility (by fuel), Area, Onroad mobile (by gas or diesel), and Nonroad (by gas or diesel). Please note that not all Sectors have available control measures.

SCC-This field lists 8-digit Source Classification Codes (SCC). If a Sector is selected, then only SCCs that correspond to that Sector will be displayed.

Facility ID—This field allows you to enter a facility ID code that identifies a specific plant in the NEI inventory. The facility ID is the plant ID from the NEI inventory. This field only applies to point non-EGU and EGU sources.

Please note that these filtering criteria fields are not mutually exclusive so that not all fields may be used in conjunction with each other as shown in Figure V-2.

	State	County	MSA	Region	SIC	NAICS	Sector	scc	Facility ID
State	-	•		•	•	•	•	•	•
County	-	-	•	•	-	-	-	-	•
MSA		•	•		•	•	•	•	•
Region	-	-		•	-	-	-	-	•
SIC	-	-	•	•	-	-			•
NAICS	•	•	•	•	•	•			•
Sector	-	•	•	•			•		•
SCC	-	•	•	•				•	•
Facility ID	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	•

Figure V-2. Possible Combinations of Filtering Criteria Fields: Script Builder Module

2. User Commands

As shown in Figure V-1, the following command buttons are provided just below the Filtering Criteria area and allow you to apply the specified filters in creating control scenarios as part of the REMSAD-ST script file.

Add–This command adds the current combination of Filtering Criteria selections and Pollutant Control Factors to the grid for inclusion in a REMSAD-ST input script.

Remove Unselected–This command removes all row entries, or control scenarios, from the grid that do not have their checkbox selected.

Export Script-This command allows you to export the control information shown in the Display Grid that have been selected into a REMSAD-ST air quality model.

Reset Criteria–This command allows the user to return the Script Builder Module interface to the initial start-up state. That is, all filtering criteria fields are returned to default "All" values, all pollutant reduction ratios are returned to 1.00, and the Display Grid is cleared to contain no row entries.

B. DEVELOPING A REMSAD-ST SCRIPT

This section provides step-by-step instructions on how to create a REMSAD-ST script reflecting a control scenario using this module. An example is provided throughout these instructions to assist you with this application in tutorial fashion. In summary, the process begins by applying the filtering criteria to query the control measures database and then selecting the level of control via the pollutant control factors. The resulting control scenario will be shown within the Display Grid for inclusion in the script. You can then export this script file or repeat this process multiple times to accumulate all of the control scenarios to be part of the overall control strategy scenario. The Script Builder Module interface facilitates and simplifies this process for you as detailed in the remainder of this section.

The following generic steps illustrate how to create a REMSAD-ST script within the Script Builder Module:

Step 1: Apply Filtering Criteria to define applicability of controls.

You begin the process of creating a script file by applying the appropriate filtering criteria to determine the regional and sectoral applicability for your control scenario. The interface facilitates these selections so that defining the query is a simple process involving your selection of the desired filtering criteria from the drop-down menus. Figure V-3 shows the example where the following filtering criteria were selected as part of this script development process:

Region = Eastern United States Sector = Coal-fired Electric Utilities

Step 2: Enter Pollutant Control Factors

This step involves entering the desired control factors across all pollutants of interest to complete the process of defining the individual control scenario to be part of the REMSAD-ST script file. Figure V-4 shows the example where the following pollutant control factors were entered as applied to the filtering criteria selected in Step 1 above:

 $NO_{x} = 0.60$ VOC = 1.00 (unchanged) CO = 1.00 (unchanged) $SO_{x} = 1.00 \text{ (unchanged)}$ $NH_{3} = 1.00 \text{ (unchanged)}$ SOA = 1.00 (unchanged) $PM_{10} = 1.00 \text{ (unchanged)}$
$$\label{eq:PMC} \begin{split} PMC &= 1.00 \; (\text{unchanged}) \\ PM_{2.5} &= 1.00 \; (\text{unchanged}) \end{split}$$

AirControINET v4.0	- REMSAD-ST Scr	pt Builder - 2011	0_20041214,	Cost Year: 199	7		
<u>Elle Edit Epols Analysis</u>	<u>D</u> ata <u>H</u> elp						
REGION	<u> </u>	SA	ST	ATF	C	OUNTY	
Eastern US	▼ A	l	▼ All		• A	<u></u>	
SIC	SI	CTDR	SC	c	FJ	ACILITY ID	
N	- U	t II Y Coal	- All		B	Ę	
NOx VOC	co	SOx	NH3	SOA	°M10	PMC	PM2.5
0.60	1.00 1.	00 1.10	1.00	1.00	1.00	1.00	1.00
					-	_	
Add	R	emove Unselecti	e d	Export Scrip	t)	Reset C	riteria
	a:	1	4		21 Q		
RECICIN MEA S	CV 7 SECIOR	SOC EIC	-ACID YID	NOX YOU CU	SOX NH3	SOA MIU	PMC PM2.5 -
			-				
			-				
		0	1				
C		2	2 2			e	ss
		2 2					
· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·							
	0.0		1 2				
		2					
			2				·
	8 6	5 Fr.	- i?				

Figure V-3. Selection of Filtering Criteria within Script Builder Module

•	irContro	INET v4	.0 -	REMSA	D-ST S	cript B	uilder	- 2010	2004	1214	. Cost	Year:	1997					[<
Elle	Edt Inc	ols <u>A</u> maly	sla <u>(</u>	2ata H	leb															
	REG	ION tern US			1	MSA Ali			-	ST Al	ATE			*	00 Al	UNTY		1	-]	I
	SIC				_	SECTO	DR			S(cc				FA	ality	' ID			I
	A			. •		Uti itv-	Cial		-	A	Ļ		- Q	В	۸I		_			
A NUMBER	NOx	vo	С		со	1.50	50x	4.00	NH3	4.05	SO	۸	Pl	M10	00	РМС	1.20	PM2	5	I
	0.	50			1	1.00	4	1.UJ	-	1.0_		(L		1	.00		1.JU	3	1.00	
		Add				Remo	we Un	selecte	d		Ex	iport S	script			R	eset C	riteria	1	
	RECION	ME A	kr	CHITY	SECTO			en	FACLE		NO	420	50	82.	NHR	201	DM: D	DEAC	DIVO 5	1
2	CAST.	All	00	000	LTCOL	A		Al	All	1.12	0.00	1.00	1.00	1.00	1.00	1.00	1.00	1.00	1.00	1
	2	-	-8	2		- 25		-	-				2		5	21		:		
-	-	-	-) 	-	-			-			-			-				_	
-	0		-			ļ.		-	-	-					0					I
2	2 2	-		3 3	-	Ĵ.			-	2					2. 2.					
2			1	3		11 Contraction		-								š				
-		-		3 7		-		2	-	2			_		5				-	
-	-		2			1		-	-						2	26 - 20 2				
	-					i.				-										
2		-	8	2 2		1. L			-	20			() 8()							
		-	1	-	-	- 4.		No.	-	-				_	-	si 8		_	-	I

Figure V-4. Entering Pollutant Control Factors

Please recall that a control factor of 0.60 is equivalent of a 40 percent emission reduction (i.e., 60 percent of the emissions remain). So the above example will implement a 40 percent reduction of NO_x emissions from coal-fired electric utilities located in the eastern United States.

Step 3: Select Add command to include individual control scenario in Display Grid

You can now select the Add command to place the individual control scenario information into the Display Grid. This selection and resulting addition to the Display Grid are illustrated in Figure V-5. At this point, you may have completely defined your control strategy scenario by completing the 3 steps described thus far. If so, then you can refer forward to Step 5 "Export results into a REMSAD-ST script." However, as noted previously, the creation of a REMSAD-ST script file can be a cumulative process in that additional control scenarios can be added to this initial specification. In this case, you can refer to the next step that describes combining multiple control specifications in creating the overall control strategy scenario.

Step 4: Continue Selection of Individual Control Scenario

To make additions to the overall scenario for your REMSAD-ST script, you must first select the *Reset Criteria* command that will eliminate previous filtering criteria and begin the process from Step 1 above. For our example, the filtering criteria have been reset and then the following filtering criteria were selected and pollutant control factors, as shown in Figure V-6(a), as part of an additional control scenario specification:

Region = Western United States Sector = Coal-fired Electric Utilities

 $NO_{x} = 1.00 \text{ (unchanged)}$ VOC = 1.00 (unchanged) CO = 1.00 (unchanged) $SO_{x} = 0.50$ $NH_{3} = 1.00 \text{ (unchanged)}$ SOA = 1.00 (unchanged) $PM_{10} = 1.00 \text{ (unchanged)}$ PMC = 1.00 (unchanged) $PM_{2.5} = 1.00 \text{ (unchanged)}$

So the above example will implement a 50 percent reduction of SO_x emissions from coal-fired electric utilities located in the western United States. The inclusion of this additional control scenario to the overall scenario is shown in Figure V-6(b).

This step may be repeated indefinitely until you have created your overall control strategy scenario. Once the scenario is completely defined, then you can refer forward to the next step of exporting the information to a script file.

•	AirCon	tro N	ET v4	.0 - 1	REMSA	D-ST 5	cript l	Builder	- 2010	_20 04 1 Z	14, Cost	Year:	1997					[X
Ele	Edit	Tools	Juay	sie g	<u>ata</u> H	(elp														
	R	EGIO	N				MSA				STATE				CO	UNTY				
	2	/Veistəi	m US				All			-	All			-	All			1	-	
	5	iiC				_	SECT	OR			SCC				F٨	CILM	D		<u></u> .	
	!	4			-		Utility	- Coal	_	*	All			в	All	_	_		_	
	NOx		VO	с		CD		SOx		NH3	sc	٨	P	M10		РМС		PM2	.5	
		1.00		đ	1.00		1.00		0 SC	1	.00	1.0	:0	1	.00		r 00		1.00	
										-				-						
			Add				Rem	ove Un	selecte	d	E	xport 5	script			R	eset C	riteria	۱. I	
			3	45									р: "а			e				
	REGIO	h	MBA All	ST	CNITY	SECTOR	102		SIC	FACILITY	D NOx	900	00	SOv 1.00	5H3	904	Pt/10	PMC 1.00	FM2.5	-
F	1-82		All	05	200	Jean					0.0.	1.0-	1.00	1.00	1.00	1.44	1.00	1.30	1.30	
	1		Ì	ij.			1		8											
ŀ	-			+			-		-		-									
	0		ľ,	1					1		1				2				1	
ŀ			-	4	-	2	-		-		2							_		
i i				ĺ.					8	32				j	2 1			- j		
		-		ą.		-			2	-			-		-	2 1		- 2		
	1		Č.	Ĭ.			1		1				[]	Ĵ		(L I			
ŀ	-			-	-		_		-		-									
			Ĵ	Î			1		2	2					_			1		
			0						~	-			s — s			21 - 2	-		11	-
1	1.1		ii.		10 E	6	1		-	5	10	-				91 - 9		- 10		and a

Figure V-5. Addition of Individual Scenario to Display Grid

Figure V-6. Specification of Additional Control Scenario: Applying Filtering Criteria and Entering Pollutant Control Factors

•	AirCor	ntro IN	ET v4	.0 - 1	REMSA	D-ST 5	ript B	Builder	- 2010	20041	214, Cost	Year:	1997					[
Ele	Edit	Tools	gnay	sic <u>C</u>	ata E	<u>t</u> elp													
	F	REGIO	N				MSA				STATE				CO	UNTY			
	Ľ	Weste	th US			·	All			+	All			-	All			1	-
		SIC					SECT	OR		SCC			FACILITY II		r ID				
		<u>A</u>	_	_	-		Jtility	- Coal	_	Ŧ	All			в	All			_	
	NOx		vo	с		CD		SOx		NH3	sc	Λ	P	M10		PMC		PM2	.5
		1.00		đ	00.1		1.00		0 SC	1	.00	1.0	:0	1	.0D		1 OC		1.00
														-					
			Add				Remo	ve Un	selecte	d	E	×port 5	script			R	leset C	riteria	
2				-			-			7			15						
	REGIO	5M	MBA	ST	CNITY	SECTOR	2 900		SIC 21	FACILITY	D MOX	905	00	50v	1.0C	904	Pt/10	PMC 1.00	FM2.5 -
	XEST		-741 -741	UJ	100	J COL	24			<u>이</u> 81	1.0.	1.0_	1.00	1.60	1.00	1.1	10	1.00	1.30
	1		1	Į.		2	1		8	-		_			_				
ŀ	+		-	i -						1						÷			
	0		j.	ļ.		-					-					<u>, </u>			
ŀ	-			1		2			-	1	-	-		Ċ.	-	-		- 1	<u> </u>
				1		2				52					2				
ŀ			-	- 22	0	s	-		0	-	0	-	a 9		<	0 0			
				1	1	2			2	-	2		5 - 5		-			1	
┣	-		Ş	1	-	-	-		-	-	-	-			-				
E			2	Î.					-							<u> </u>	i i		
4	-					e e e	-		8		2				6	20 - S			
E										1									-

Step 5: Export results into REMSAD-ST script

Once your individual selections completely define your overall control strategy scenario, then you can export the contents shown in the Display Grid into a REMSAD-ST Script directly by using the Export Script user command button. This will export the control scenario information for each row entry with its checkbox selected into a control factors file, or input script, for the REMSAD-ST air quality model. You can also export this information into a file by selecting Export under File from the interface toolbar menu. You simply select REMSAD-ST Script under Export from the interface toolbar menu.

Upon using either method, the REMSAD-ST Script "Save As" Dialog box will appear as shown in Figure V-7. The default path will be the AirControlNET directory folder. You can define the REMSAD-ST input script file name and then save by clicking the Save button. This file must be saved as a text file (*.TXT). You will be prompted separately to provide "user name" and "scenario description" for documentation purposes. This file will then be created and available for use in the REMSAD-ST air quality model. An example of the file resulting from our example is shown in Figure V-8.

Save As			2 🛛
Save jn: 🙆	AirControlNET Data	E	- * 🖩 -
Final	1		
Export	remsadscript		Save
Save as type:	File (*.txt)	-	Cancel
			Нер
			<u>C</u> ode Page

Figure V-7. REMSAD-ST Script Save as Dialog Box

Figure V-8. Example REMS	AD-ST Script
--------------------------	--------------

	.TXT Notepad				
Die Edit Formet 9	(and their				
REMSAD-ST Scri 10/14/03	pt Generated wit	h Aircontrolmer	v3.2		^
ETES I ABC /500RCE CATEGO /500RCE CATEGO /2000 101002 48000 101002 47000 101002 23000 101002 45000 101002 45000 101002 45000 101002 21000 101002 20000 1	NOM NOM NOM 012 0.60 1.00 012	1 00 1.40 1.00 1.40	HH2 EDA PMH2 1.00 1.00 1.00 <t< th=""><th>DMC DMC DMC 1 1.00 1.00 1.00<th></th></th></t<>	DMC DMC DMC 1 1.00 1.00 1.00 <th></th>	

[This page intentionally left blank.]

CHAPTER VI. ANALYSIS TOOLS

AirControlNET provides two analysis tools: Maps and Graphs. The Map analysis tool is available when using the Control Scenario Module and the Least Cost Module. The graph analysis tool is only available when using the Least Cost Module.

A. MAP ANALYSIS TOOL

1. Overview of the AirControlNET Mapping Tool

When data is selected in the Control Scenarios Module or Least Cost Module, the map analysis tool becomes available as shown in Figure VI-1. This tool allows the creation of maps that shade States, counties, and MSAs based on pollutant emission reductions and costs.

When "Map" is selected from the analysis menu, a map creation window shown in Figure VI-2 is displayed. This window allows the user to set the map's title, notes, font size, and static layers. There are also controls to set the dynamic layer shading ranges and colors. Each dynamic map feature, a state, county, or MSA, has ten dynamic shading ranges, one for each pollutant. The color shades and ranges can be automatically or manually set. The automatic ranges are determined by either a equal interval or Jenks Natural Breaks algorithm. The number of intervals is set by the check boxes to the left of the grid. The range colors can be set manually by clicking on the color to be changed and then using the color selector.

Once all map information has been set, the map can be viewed and/or saved. The map that is created is divided into two main sections which can be viewed by clicking the tabs in the upper left hand corner of the map. The default view is the map view shown in Figure VI-3. The second view displays notes that are associated with the map.

The map view is composed of two sections: the control panel and the map display. The control panel, located on the left side of the map window, contains the map thumbnail, the pollutant range selector and legend, and layer selector. The map thumbnail is used to zoom and pan the map. Zooming in and out is done by clicking the magnifying glasses marked with a plus and minus. To pan the map, the user can click and drag the map viewable area box, which is colored light blue. The drop down box indicates the pollutant range that is used to shade the dynamic state, county, and MSA layers. When a new pollutant is selected, the legend and map shading are automatically updated. The map layer selector is used to show and hide all of the map layers. The "Show More Layers" checkbox displays a window containing more static layers. The map display shows the map at the currently selected zoom level and panned area. The mouse can be used to query state, county, and MSA and display a window containing a pollutant histogram. The map can be exported to JPG at any time by clicking the "Export" button.

AirControiNET w	4.0 - Least Cost Module -ss Data Help	- 2010_20041214, C	ost Year: 1997				
POLLUTAN FM D	roph F COST PER 1	ON 🔽	REDUCTION	N TARGET	% RI ©	EDUCTION T	ARGET
MSA		STATT		COUNT	Y		
10100 - Aberdeel 10140 - Aberdeel 10180 - Aberdeel 10180 - Aberdeel 10220 - Aberdeel	r, SD Micropolitan Stati A 5, WA Micropolitan Stati Micropolitan Statisti Micropolitan Statistica 👤	01 - Alskerna 14 - Alizona 06 - Mikarese 06 - Sal fornia		● 01001 - 01003 - 01005 ● 01007 -	Autauga Co Balowin Co Borbour Co Bibt. Co		
NAICS			SECT	ÖR			
111 - Crop Frodu 112 - Anima Pro 113 - Lorestry an 115 - Support Ad	otion duction diLogoing Mitles for Acricuiture and Fo	DT9≤1ry	Ut Iny Ut Iny Ut Iny	- Cost - Natural GasiC - Cit - Wicoc/Blomas	1 :S		-
Run Query	Export Fil	e Export	Script	Reset Crite	stia	llide Crit	eria
Number Utste Cou	ntv Measure	Source	57 Joh	inc, Reductid C.	im, nc. NeC.	m Inc. OdMO/	
1 01 077	Fabric Fitar (Puise Jet Typ	Minera Froducts - Other	112	13.7	13.7	540 224	:0
2 04 000	Fabro Fiter (Pulse Jet Typ	Minera Froducts - Other	112	17.4	01.1	0 491 4043	20
3 01 003	Fabro Fiter (Pulse Jet 1 yo	Minera Froducta Other	112	33.4	64.5	/ 232 / 343	2U
4 01 073	Intreased Notiforing Frequ	Milera Froducts - Other	115	0.9	65.4	7 341 133	2
sj01 015 	(Sol Conservation Plans	Agroutural ling	107	0.9	earol	4 aablat o	
lotal Control	able lons lons H	educed	i otal Annual C	ost	Average Ar	nual Cost / I	on
	`E1,691	181,691	3	034 762,421		16,7	02

Figure VI-1. Selection Of Mapping Tool under Analysis Tab

Figure VI-2.	Map Creation	Window.
--------------	--------------	---------







2. Creating a Map

This section provides step-by-step instruction on how to create map using this tool. An example is provided throughout these instructions to assist you with this application in tutorial fashion. Example considered for the tutorial is to create map for NO_x reduction obtained from the controls on petroleum refineries in Texas selected from Control Scenario Module (CSM).

Step 1: Apply Filtering Criteria to define the Query of Control Measures Database

You begin process of creating map by selecting Control strategy scenario from CSM. Select following filtering criteria for the data query in CSM.

Pollutant: NOx State: Texas SCC: 30600000 (Petroleum Refinery Point Sources)

Step 2: Select Run Query Command to Initiate Query of Control Measures Database

Initiate the query by selecting the Run Query command. The matching control measures will then be displayed within the Database Grid area. You can select all the controls in the grid by selecting "Select All" command or refine them in the grid as required.

Step 3: Select Map under Analyze tab to display the geographical map

After selecting controls, select Map under the Analyze tab on the main menu to plot the reduction on the geographical map. You will be presented with the Map creation window. The map will have the default title - "Annual Emissions Reductions (tons/year)". This can be edited as needed.

Additional static layers can be added to the map by selecting the check boxes next to the thematic layers shown in the top right of Figure VI-2. Colors can be customized by clicking the Color Squares next to each layer. Data ranges can be customized for each pollutant by selecting pollutant from drop down box and assigning data ranges for dynamic map feature, a state, county or MSA. Select additional ranges using the empty check boxes.

You have following three options for data range type:

- 1. Equal Interval Automatic shading range option for dividing data ranges into equal intervals
- 2. Jenks Natural Break Automatic shading range option for dividing data ranges using Jenks Natural Break algorithm
- 3. User Defined Manual shading range option

Select any one data range type as required.

Step 4: View and Save Map

Maps can be saved by selecting the "Save Map" command from Map creation window. Maps are saved in Scalable Vector Graphics (SVG) format. Saved maps can be viewed independently outside the application. Selecting the "View Map" command to generate and views the map in a new AirControlNET window.

The top section in the control panel of the Map view window shows a navigation map and facilitates navigation. You can zoom in and out of the map by selecting "Zoom In" or "Zoom Out" marked with a plus and minus on magnifying glass. You can see the current level of zooming in percentage from Zoom Factor. You pan the map by moving the light blue square box around the map.

You can select the pollutant of interest, which is NO_x for our example, from the drop down list in the control panel. The data range legend for the selected pollutant will be shown. The mouse over on the map display panel pops up window showing total reduction for selected level (i.e. State, County or MSA) and total cost of reduction. You select "Show Counties" to view the county boundaries dynamic layer on the map. By selecting "Show Counties", the county level reduction appears on the map. The Data range legend also changes correspondingly to show county level data range legend. Similarly by selecting "Show MSA", you will be presented with MSA dynamic layer, MSA level reduction and corresponding data range legend. You can show additional static layers by checking the box "Show More Layers". You can also add or remove any additional thematic layers from the map window as necessary. You should note that only the layers selected from the Map creation window would be active in the Map display window.

Step 5: Export Map

You can export the map by selecting "Export" command from the map screen. Map would be saved in the JPEG image format. You select the location to save the image when prompted.

B. GRAPH ANALYSIS TOOL

When a Least Cost Module query returns results, the graph analysis menu shown in Figure VI-4 becomes available. There are two graphs that can be displayed: "cost per Ton vs Incremental Tons Reduced" and "Cost vs Incremental Tons Reduced". An Example of each graph type is shown in Figures VI-5 and VI-6, respectively. The graph display window provides the graph and its description. To edit the graph properties, click the "Properties" button. The map can be saved in JPG format using the "Export" button.

AirContro NET v1.0 - I	Least Cost Module 2010 2	0041214, Cos	t Year: 1997			E		
POLLUTAN Republic	 Main vs. for remental Ture Cost vs. for remental Ture 	Reme Refred		TARGET	% R	EDUCTION TA	RGET 10	
MSA	STATE	STATE			COUNTY			
10100 - Aberdeen, 200 10100 - Aberdeen, 7440 10180 - Abilene TX Met 10220 - Ade, 0K Microp	Micropolitan Stati – 11 - Ala Micropolitan Stat 11 - 4/12 biopolitan Statisti Icolitan Statistical – 16 - Cal	oama ona ansas Irorria					N	
NAICS			SECT	DR				
111 - Cirop Production			- U-il ty-	Cost			-	
112 - Animal rocuctor	n		Utility -	Ivatural Gas/Ci	E.			
113 - Forestry and Logo 116 - Support Activities	<u>eing</u> for Action through Economy		Utility -	CII Waar /Blamaar				
Tra-simplin tar writes	or Agricar time and the easily		C my		a.			
Run Guery	Export Filc	Export S	cript	Reset Crite	ria	Hide Crite	ria	
Number State Courty view	asura Source		\$/Ton I	nd, Reduct düru	m Inc. RaCu	m. Inc. Covies	51 +	
1 38 C65 our	-sase: Morilori y Freq Electric Ger	u-raliu i - Ciel	11	19.6	19 5	2,17		
2 38 C65 nor	casee Monitoring Frequelectric Cet	narction - Caol	11	8.1	27.7	3,074		
3 38 C57 ner	eased Monitoring Frequelectric Get	naration - Coal	· 11	9.3	37.0	4,110	_	
4 28 147 CFk	d Hpgrade and IME of PIElectric Ger Hand Marilania Ease Electric Cer	u-ration - Chel	23	10	35 -	4 256 15821		
= 10 L61 hc*	сазос моллогіна нісацыссню Сеі	norction - Coci	1 24	1.6	32.5	4,402/20222		
Total Controllable T	ons Tons Reduced		Total Annual Co	st	Average A	nnual Cost / Tor		
	24 850	24,850	1,7	02 664,273		26,25	5	

Figure VI-4. Selection Of Graphing Tool under Analysis Tab



Figure VI-5. Graph of Cost per Ton vs Incremental Tons Reduced



Figure VI-6. Graph of Cost vs Incremental Tons Reduced.

1. Overview of Graphing Tool

Graph of \$ / ton vs. Cumulative Incremental Reduction

This option plots \$ / ton of the selected pollutant versus the cumulative incremental reduction (in tons) on a line graph.

The LCM module within AirControlNET selects the sets of optimum controls to achieve the reductions based on the selections supplied by the user. The graph of \$/ton vs. cumulative incremental reduction is created using the output of the LCM module. In this graph, \$ / ton for each control is plotted against cumulative incremental reduction from the controls. This type of graph is useful for control implementation cost analysis since this graph can be used to evaluate the most cost effective controls and also observe sudden change in the slope of the graph, i.e., the sudden increase in cost effectiveness of control measures.

Graph of Cumulative Control Costs vs. Cumulative Incremental reduction

This option plots the cumulative total annual control cost of the selected pollutant versus the cumulative incremental reduction (in tons) on a line graph.

As in the previous graph, the AirControlNET LCM module is used to select the set of optimum controls to achieve the reductions as defined by the user. The graph of cumulative total annual cost vs. cumulative incremental reduction is created using the output of LCM module. This type of graph would be used to view the total control cost needed to achieve the specified emissions reduction.

2. Example of Graph Analysis Tool

This section provides a step by step example of the Graph Analysis Tool. The example below creates a graph of $\$ / ton versus cumulative incremental for a 10% PM₁₀ reduction from utility sector controls.

Step 1: Apply Filtering Criteria to define the Query of Least Cost Module

Select following query criteria from LCM module.

Pollutant: PM₁₀ Sector: Utility State: All % Reduction Target: 10%

Step 2: Select Run Query Command to Initiate Query of Least Cost Module

Document No. 05.09.007/9010.463

Initiate the query of Least Cost Module by selecting the Run Query command. The least-cost set of control measure that achieves your emission reduction target will then be displayed within the database grid.

Step 3: Select Graph under Analysis tab on the main menu to plot graph

Select graph under Analysis on the main menu. You have the option of plotting following two graphs:

- \$ / ton versus incremental reduction
- Cost versus incremental reduction

Select \$ / ton versus incremental reduction for our example. You will be presented with graph display window. The Graph display window has two panels. The top panel provides the graph and bottom panel shows footnotes. The footnotes provide the following information about the graph:

- 1. Plotted pollutant
- 2. MSA
- 3. State
- 4. Counties
- 5. NAICS
- 6. Sector

Step 4: Customize the Graph properties

You can change the graph properties by selecting Properties at the bottom of graph window.

You can customize following graph properties:

- 1. **Title**–You can edit Graph Title, Bottom (X-Axis) title, Left (Primary Y-Axis) title, Right (Minor Y-Axis) title.
- 2. **Axis**–You can customize the color, position, scale, tick marks and grid for X-axis and primary Y-Axis.
- 3.
- 4. **Fonts**–You can customize fonts for Graph title, Axis label and Legend.
- 5. **Background**–You can change background color of the graph, apply different styles to titles.
- 6. **Labels**–You can change, turn it on or off labels for each of the axis and data.
Step 5: Export the Graph

You can export the graph by selecting "Export" command from the graph screen. Graph would be saved in JPG format. You can select the location to save the image.

APPENDIX A: DATABASE GRID VARIABLES FOR CONTROL SCENARIOS MODULE

Column Name	Column Description			
(Selected)	If the selected box is checked, the record should be included when			
	summing, saving, or exporting.			
Control	Control Measure Name			
Source	Source Category			
PM ₁₀	Annual Particulate Matter # 10 µm Emission Reduction (Tons)			
PM2.5	Annual Particulate Matter # 2.5 µm Emission Reduction (Tons)			
EC	Annual Elemental Carbon Emission Reduction (Tons)			
OC	Annual Organic Carbon Emission Reduction (Tons)			
NO _x	Annual Nitrogen Oxides Emission Reduction (Tons)			
SO ₂	Annual Sulfur Dioxide Emission Reduction (Tons)			
VOC	Annual Volatile Organic Carbons Emission Reduction (Tons)			
NH ₃	Annual Ammonia Emission Reduction (Tons)			
СО	Annual Carbon Monoxide Emission Reduction (Tons)			
Нд	Annual Mercury Emission Reduction (Tons)			
Total Cost	Total Cost of the Control Measure			
OM Cost	Operating and Maintenance Cost			
Cap Cost	Capital Cost			
\$/Ton	Cost Effectiveness (\$/Ton)			
MSA	Metropolitan Statistical Area			
St	State			
Cnty	County			
SIC	Standard Industrial Classification Code			
NAICS	North American Industry Classification System Code			
Sector	Sector (Utility, Non-Utility, Area, etc.)			
SCC	Source Classification Code			
Plant ID	Plant ID Code			
Plant	Plant Name			
Point ID	Point ID Code			
Capacity	Boiler Capacity			
Cap Units	Capacity Units			
Operating Labor Costs	Operating Labor Costs (\$)			
Maintenance Costs	Maintenance Costs (\$)			
Supervisor Costs	Supervisor Costs (\$)			
Maintenance Material Costs	Maintenance Material Costs (\$)			
Replacement Costs	Replacement Costs (\$)			
Electricity Costs	Electricity Costs (\$)			
Steam Costs	Steam Costs (\$)			
Fuel Costs	Fuel Costs (\$)			
Waste Disposal Costs	Waste Disposal Costs (\$)			
Chemical Costs	Chemical Costs (\$)			
Other Raw Material Costs	Other Raw Material Costs (\$)			
Other Utility Costs	Other Utility Costs (\$)			
Total Direct Annual Costs	Total Direct Annual Costs (\$)			
Overhead Costs	Overhead Costs (\$)			
Administrative Costs	Administrative Costs (\$)			
Property Tax Costs	Property Tax Costs (\$)			
Insurance Costs	Insurance Costs (\$)			

Total Indirect Annual Costs Total Indirect Annual Costs (\$)

APPENDIX B: DATABASE GRID VARIABLES FOR LEAST-COST MODULE

Column Name	Column Description
Number	The current record's rank. All records are sorted by incremental cost per
	ton.
State	State
County	County
Measure	Control Measure Name
Source	Source Category
\$ / Ton	Cost Effectiveness (\$/Ton)
Inc. Reduction	Incremental Reduction (Tons)
Cum. Inc. Reduction	Cumulative Incremental Reduction (Tons)
Cum. Inc. Cost	Cumulative Incremental Cost (\$)
MSA	Metropolitan Statistical Area
SIC	Standard Industrial Classification Code
NAICS	North American Industry Classification System Code
Plant ID	Plant ID Code
Point ID	Point ID Code
Plant Name	Plant Name
SCC	Source Classification Code

APPENDIX C: DATABASE GRID VARIABLES FOR SCRIPT BUILDER MODULE

Column Name	Column Description
(Selected)	If the selected box is checked, the record should be included when
	saving or exporting.
Region	Region Designation
MSA	Metropolitan Statistical Area
St	State
Cnty	County
Sector	Sector (Utility, Non-Utility, Area, etc.)
SCC	Source Classification Code
SIC	Standard Industrial Classification Code
Facility ID	Plant ID Code
NO _x	Nitrogen Oxides Control Factor
VOC	Volatile Organic Carbons Control Factor
СО	Carbon Monoxide Control Factor
SO _x	Sulfur Oxides Control Factor
NH ₃	Ammonia Control Factor
SOA	Secondary Organic Aerosols Control Factor
PM ₁₀	Particulate Matter # 10 µm Control Factor
PMC	Particulate Matter, Coarse Control Factor
PM ₂₅	Particulate Matter # 2.5 µm Control Factor

APPENDIX D: REPORTING FILES FOR CONTROL SCENARIOS MODULE

The Emission and Cost Summary Report Grids have the same columns. The only difference between the pages is the report generated (Emission or Cost).

Column Name	Column Description
No. Recs	Number of records that have the specified Measure and Source
Measure	Measure Name
Source	Source Category
Before Reduction	Total Emissions Before Applying Control Measure (Tons)
Reduction	Emissions Reduced (Tons)
After Reduction	Post Control Emissions(Tons)
% Reduction	Percent Reduction (Tons Reduced/Total Emissions*100)
Total Cost	Total Annual Cost of the Control Measure (\$)
Cost / Ton	Cost Effectiveness (\$/Ton)
Cum. Annual Emissions	Cumulative Annual Emissions (Tons)
Cum. Reductions	Cumulative Reductions (Tons)
Cum. Final Emissions	Cumulative Post Control Emissions (Tons)
Cum. Total Cost	Cumulative Total Cost (\$)
Cum. Cost / Ton	Cumulative Cost Effectiveness (\$/Ton)

PM1						
	0 Control Cost	5				
E ata is	sourced by cost per t	un				
No lec.	Measure	Source	Tok (Cost	Dest/Ten	Dumi Ctal Cool	ar v C
2	- aper/\omyoven	aproated Metal Froducts - V ^e elding	4100	100	1105	
28=1	Soll Construction	Agricultural Tilling	73580300	168	7.3607044	
2954	Watering	Jest Cattle Lesdicts	11,0101,072	270	100040010	
3059	Variation Symmetry	Favel R and	793012354	£74	9=185=170	
9225	lot Asphalt Paving	Unpaved Rd	12000009107	C02	10207927007	
2959	education and	Readentral Wood Compusition	295/56138	(LEUS)	13557685775	
074	nercose Fuel Mosture	Treactined Furning	9834607E4	3182	14571: 44530	
0076	Chemical Stabilization	Unicaries (dec	11/03216560	32/0	20277301095	
6079	Du 4 Croin I Pluis	One de a trus Adix tros	5349817925	4777	51676177020	
000	Dale Stack/Picpare	Agricultural Dumine	064050015	6009	C: 950200900	
41	Fairs: Filler (Polse Jel.	Gran Milling	11 1/28 010	SH-20	221 IN5-945	
28	Fobrie Filter	Jil ty Balets - Coal	61765005	. 0164	321 827 22040	
1-1	- aper /\omvoven	Oran Milling	1021102.0	110/4	C225400L045	
1-1	abric Litter	Oran Milling	162200.60	10000	C241/44/200	
51	Topet/Sonweven	Exercisered Metal Evolution- Aarosive	21007524	::3752	.22459354727	
422	abric Fifter (Mech.	Non-lehous Metals Frocessing	451004000	× 0090	12920051700	
973	Falric Filler (Polse Jel	Mineral Proceeds: Store Oliverying and	573583748	18582	93494400509	
912	Tabic Filter (Pulse Jet	stineral Products - Coal Disaning	00100-000	20000	24027922059	
4.22	Fabric Hiller	Yor Ferrous Metals Frocessing	532182356	216/2	24858405215	
973	Fahrie Fifter (Math	Mineral Producte - Stone Quoris) ng and	670200065	21.765	35528705280	
810	-aper/Normoven	Mineral Products Stone Quaritying and	0010000E7	21010	C0210072177	
874	Day EEP-W/n: Photo:	More d Portado - Shi to Quanyi grand	663330768	22752	568F1107045	
000	Dry DBP-Wile Pilate	Non-Fellous Metals Frocessing	000 °7% 000	20950	27421072973	
81.2	matrix Hiller (Mielz	Mineral Proposition Crist Cleaning	9/1/35-65	240.02	C-84 (960-91) 1	

Figure D-1. Example Cost Summary Report

Figure D-2. Example Emissions Summary Report

😁 Report Design	er - rpt_emission.fr	x - AirControlNET v.J. 2 - Emission	Summery Imis	sion Year: 199	9, Cost Year.	
🔝 File Edit Toos	Data Helo					_ 8 ×
						-
PM1	0 Control Emis	ssions				
Dita i	o ocited by cool per l	cii				
No. Rec.	Meclaure	Source	Eefcre Control	Incremental Fied uction	After Control	Percen Reduttiou
1	-арес/холмамно	Factors ed Metal Emiduels - Metdung	:-*	301	1	-6-
2854	Soll Conservation	Agricultural Tilling	4297076	+30182	3857804	IC.
2954	Watering .	Jest Cattle Lesdicts	C901C0	295091	291091	1 0
3079	Maratan Sozer inc	Tuz al R and	7725733	1380F28	1335105	51
9225	lo: Asphat Paving	Unpaved (d)	20015066	10000191	9411705	1
2979	= dua salina sand	Residential Work: Concording	373522	186766	· 8=76B	5
054	norcase Fuel Mosture	Treserised Eurning	518130	309070	302070	SC .
30/5	Chemical Stabilization	Uniparted Koac	3538724	3502022	6635702	2
6070	Dust Control Plan	Condruction Activities	1765142	1221064	737177	57 57
010	Jale Stack/Picpare	Agricultural Durning	104.4.7	60200	4_/04	ж. ж
121	abric Fifter 'Pulse Jef	Oran Milling	12.60	111/1	601	×
78	Eulei: Filler	Ili i y Brikes - Qual	16070	8077	1,5002	×
421	Faper/vorwoven	Brain Milling	12025	1444	501	9C
454	Falri: Filler	Gran Milling	12705	1424	581	¥
E1	Toper/Vonwoven	Fabricated Metal Froducts - Aprosive	* SC4	1670	34	36
422	abric Fifter Webr.	Yor enous Metas Frocessing	20167	24660	124.5	×
073	Fulric Filler (Polse del	More al Procende - Shore & annyi uprand	32347	31574	973	57
912	abric Litter 'Pulse Jet	Mineral Products - Coal Cleaning	41.20	40405	1200	dr.
452	Falric Filler	No. Ferring: Means Finnessing	26157	24950	1248	¥
033	Fabric Filter (Meen)	vi neral Producto - Stone Guarrying and	32347	31 37.4	073	57
9:3	- aper/\orivioveri	Mineral Products Stolle Quarrying and	32347	31674	813	37
874	Dry EFP-Wite Plate	Mineral Producto - Stone Querrying and	3: 470	30722	1457	TF .
000	Uny LisP-W/re Plate	Non- enous Metals Frocessing	20805	22509	900	
4	- · · - ··· -]					